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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Audit Committee of the
Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico:

Report on the Basic Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Economic Development Bank
for Puerto Rico (the “Bank”), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the
“Commonwealth"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Basic Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the basic financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the basic financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemmal control relevant to the Bank's preparation and fair presentation of the basic
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank's intemal controls. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
basic financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence that we have obtalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our qualified audit opinion.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion and Note Disclosure Regarding Pensions

As discussed fn Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the Bank does not have the information
available to implement the requirements of Statement No. 68 of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, “Accounting and Financlal Reporting for Pensions”, an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27. Accordingly, the Bank has not been able to determine and account for its
proportionate share of net pension obligation, deferred inflow of resources and deferred outflow
of resources related to pension costs and has not recognized the effect of current period changes
in net pension obligation, deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflow of resources as these
relate to pension costs,

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that pension
related liability, deferred outflow of resources, deferred inflow of resources, as applicable, be
recognized fn accordance with the parameters established by Statement No. 68, as well as the
effect of current period changes of the aforementioned amounts that must be recognized in
pension expense during the current period. Recognition of these amounts would increase
liabilities, increase deferred outflow of resources, increase deferred inflow of resources, increase
the deficit, and change the pension expenses. The amounts by which this departure would affect
liabilities, deferred outflow of resources, deferred inflow of resources, deficit, and expenses,
beginning net position and beginning fund balance, if any, has not been determined.

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements do not disclose the pension cost
information required by Statement No. 68. In our opinion, disclesure of this information fs
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Qualified Opinfon Regarding Allowance for Loan Losses

As discussed fn Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the Bank changed its methodology to
calculate its allowance for loan losses during the year ended June 30, 2015. This methodology
does not follow accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("Us
GAAP™) and ASC 310-10 for specific reserve calculation.

US GAAP requires that the specific reserve should be calculated based on the expected future
cash flows of impaired loans or the market value of the underlying collateral of impaired loans.
Specific reserves should account for any deficiency between the unpaid principal batance and the
present value of the expected future cash flows or market value of underlying collateral. If the
basic financial statements were corrected for this departure from US GAAP, the allowance for
loan losses, the provision for loan losses and the net operating loss of the Bank would have
increased, and the net position would have decreased by approximately $10.2 million,
respectively,
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Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described above in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion and Note Disclosure Regarding Pensions and Basis for Qualified Opinion
Regarding Allowance for Loan Losses paragraphs, the 2015 basic financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Economic Bevelopment
Bank for Puerto Rico as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Prior Year Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements of the Bank as of June 30, 2014, were audited by other auditors
whom report dated October 22, 2014, expressed an unmodified opinion on those basfc financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 20 to the basic financial statements, the Bank is reported as part of the
Commeonwealth of Puerto Rico (“Commonwealth”). As of June 30, 2015, and subsequently, the
financial condition and liquidity of the Commonwealth have deteriorated. The financial
difficulties experienced by the Commonwealth included the uncertainty as to the ability to fully
satisfy its obligations. Considering that most of the Bank’s deposits are from agencies from the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, any further deterioration in the Commonwealth’s financial
condition could have an adverse effect in the Bank’s ability to continue its operations, Our report
was not modified with respect to this matter.

As discussed In Note 1, the basic financial statements present only the operations of the Bank and
do not purport te, and do not present fairly the financial position of the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico as of June 30, 2015, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with US GAAP. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
this matter,

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information Omitted

The Bank has omitted the Schedule of the Bank's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability,
and the Schedule of the Bank's Contributions to the Employees' Pension Plan, information that
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. Our opinion on the
basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

BOO, Puerto Rico. PSC, o Puerto Rico Professionat Services Corporation, and BDO USVI, LLC, a United States Virgin Istand’s limited Uiability Company, are
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Requlred Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 to 14 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

BDD wa{{b Q\Zal Pec

San Juan, Puerto Rico
April 7, 2016

Certified Public Accountants

{of Puerto Rico)

License No. 53 explires December 1, 2018
Stamp E195578 of the P.R Society of
Certified Public Accountants has been
affixed to the file copy of this report
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section discussion contains an analysis of the statements of net position of the Economic
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (the “Bank”) as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and its
changes in financial position for the years then ended. The information included in this
section should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements of the Bank and its
notes.

The business-type activities of the Bank are accounted for as enterprise funds, which include
the activities of the Bank’s principal operating fund and those of the Bank's blended
component unit, Economic Development Bank Capital Investment (“EDBCI”). EDBCI was
created to account for and focus separately on the activities and investments in local equity
and venture capital funds. The required financial statements for an enterprise fund are as
follows: statement of net position; statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net
position; and statement of cash flows. These financial statements report information using
accounting methods similar to those used by private financial institutions.

The statement of net position includes all the Bank’s assets and liabilities, classified as
current, noncurrent, capital assets, and net position. This statement provides information as
of a specific date about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the
obligations to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the Bank’s
capital structure.

The statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position includes revenue earned
and expenses incurred by the Bank for a specific period of time (12 operating months
beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30). This statement measures the results of the
Bank's operation and can be used to determine whether the Bank has successfully recovered
all its costs through user fees and other charges. This statement distinguishes interest and
non-interest revenue and expenses.

The statement of cash flows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and changes in cash
resulting from operations, noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and investing
activities. This statement provides information about the Bank’s cash flows and how cash {s
abtained, used, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period
beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30.

Financial Highlights

« Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments decreased $10.7 million in
2015, from a net gain of $2.5 million in 2014 to a net loss of $8.2 million in 2015.

* Interest income from loans amounted to $17 million in 2015, a $1.7 miltion or
approximately 11.3% increase from $15.3 million in 2014,
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* Net income decreased $3.1 million in 2015 or 53%, from a net income of $5.9 miltion
in 2014 to a net income of $2.8 million in 2015.

As mentioned above, the Bank reported a Net Income of $2.8 million for the year ended June 30,
2015, a $3.1 million decrease when compared to the Net Income of $5.9 million reported for the
year ended June 30, 2014,

The main reason for this variance was a decrease in Non-Interest Income of approximately $10.2
million, from & $2.9 million gain in 2014 to a $7.3 million loss in 2015. At the same time, this
decrease was mainly due to net realized and unrealized losses on investments in 2015 of 58.3
million, compared to net realized and unrealized gains on investments in 2014 of $2.5 million.

The net realized and unrealized losses on investment of 2015 results from the combined effect of
$6.1 million net unrealized losses (non-cash) in venture capital investments, $1.8 million net
unrealized losses (non-cash) in investment securities and approximately $300,000 in net realized
losses from the disposition of investments, as follows:

2015 2014
Net realized and unrealized gains/(losses) on investments:
{Loss)/gain on sales of investments S (306,741) § 2,805,089
Unrealized loss on valuation of investment securities (1,846,337) {2,043,999)
Unrealized (loss)/gain on valuation of venture capital
investments (6,128,872) 1,672,074
Dividends 7,000 48,000
$ (8,274,950) S 2,481,164
6
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At the same time, the unrealized (non-cash) gain/(loss) on valuation of venture capital
investments details as follows:

2015 2014
Unrealized (loss)/gain on valuation of venture capital
Investments;
Valuation (losses)/gains - extemal investment pools
Guayacan Private Equity Fund, LP S (5,728,379) § 16,454
Guayacan Private Equity Fund, LP I 106,842 2,156,858
Venture Capital Fund, Inc. (390,025) {275,476)
PR Entrepreneurs Fund, LP 122,090 24,238
(5,889,472) 1,922,074
Valuation losses - direct equity investments:
E-Nabler,Inc. - (170,000)
General Reserve (239,400) (80,000)
{239,400) (250,000)

S (6,128,872) § 1,672,074

As can be noted, the main driver for these losses in 2015 is the valuation of the Guayacén Private
Equity Fund (GPEF), which in FY 2015 recorded an unrealized loss of $5.7 million. Within the
GPEF, the individual investment with the greatest effect in the fund valuation is the one in
Medical Card System, Inc. (MCS), which from 6/30/14 to date has dropped over 66% of its value,
or around $14.1 million (EDB share at a 47.65% ownership came off to approximately $6.7 million
during 2015). This resulted from the current healthcare crisis in Puerto Rico, specifically the
reduction of 11%, or more, in Medicare Advantage rates for Puerto Rico (while the US average has
increased 3%) and the imposition of the Healthcare Insurance Tax, included in the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act.

Nonetheless, it shoutd be noted that the GPEF has been a very profitable investment, having an
average annual return of over 12% during the years since it was acquired from the Government
Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB) in 2006. Especially because of its investment in MCS
which, notwithstanding the current negative effect on the Fund's financials, has been one of the
Funds most successful investments and has provided significant returns.

The Fund originally invested $3.4 million in MCS and has received cash distributions of $54.4
million, representing 16.0X its original investment. Just based on this cash return, and assuming
no further distribution on the Fund's MCS investment, the investment in MCS has yielded an IRR of
over 30% to the Fund.

In addition to the losses in venture capital investments, the Bank recorded an unrealized (non-
cash) loss in the valuation of investment securities for 2015 of $1.8 million, which compares
favorably with the unrealized loss in valuation of investments securities for 2014 of $2.0 million.
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These losses resulted mainly from the valuation of the Bank’s investments in Puerto Rico debt.
The Bank had investments in PR debt of $17.7 and $152.7 million at June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. These investments were made with short term maturities in order to take benefit
of high interest returns. All of the matured investments in PR debt to date have been repaid at
par value and unrealized losses taken on individual securities have been reversed.

It should be noted that as of May 31, 2015 the Bank had a recorded vear to date unrealized gain
in investment securities of $240,000, and it was not until the Puerto Rico government news of
late June 2015, about its inability to repay all of {ts debt, that a $2.1 million unrealized loss in
investment securities was recorded, resulting in the $1.8 million presented in the financial
statements.

In conclusion, other than the line of Other Noninterest Income in the Statement of Revenues and
Expenses for the year ended June 30, 2015, EDB financials exhibit positive results in terms of the
Bank’s ability to generate net interest income and to adequately control its operating expenses.

Comparison of 2015 and 2014 Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position

Condensed financial information on assets, liabilities, and net position is presented below
(dollar amounts in thousands):

Increase/(decrease)
Net Position 2015 2014 Amount Percentage
Assets:
Current assets S 175,018 5§ 339,895 §5 (164,877) (49)%
Noncurrent assets 669,870 750,351 {80,481) {11)%
Total assets 844,888 1,090,246 (245,358) {23)%
Liabitities:
Current Habilities 256,846 468,298 (211,452) (45)%
Nancurrent Uabilities 419,207 455,950 (36,741) {8)%
Total liabilities 676,053 924,248 (248,195) (27)%
Net position:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 308 (10) 418 (380)%
Restricted for special loan programs 23,837 18,077 5,760 2%
Unrestricted 144,690 148,030 {3,340) (2)%
Net position 5 168,835 S 165,997 5 2,838 2%

At June 30, 2015, the Bank’s total assets were $845 million ($52.9 million from EDBCI) compared
to $1,090.2 million at June 30, 2014 ($57.9 million from EDBCI). The decrease of $245.4 million
represents 22,5% of the 2014 total assets balance.

Total loan portfolio decreased by 5.5% when compared to balances as of June 30, 2014. Loan
disbursements decreased from $177.5 million in 2014 to $121.6 million in 2015, while principal
collected on loans decreased from $127.5 million for fiscal year 2014 to $121.3 million for fiscal
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year 2015. The related allowance for loan losses decreased by $14.7 million or 43% of the 2014
balance. The net loan portfolio decreased by $4.1 million.

In 2015, Management changed the methodology by which the allowance for loan losses is
calculated. In prior years the adequacy of the allowance was based on an evaluation of the
portfolio, past loan loss experience, economic conditions, volume growth, composition of the
loan portfolio, and other relevant factors. For 2015 it was calculated similarly, except for an
adjustment to establish the allowance at a level of at least the maximum balance of annual loan
losses sustained during the previous three years. Under this new methodology, management
postulates that the allowance will be sufficient to absorb next year's loan losses, up to the
maximum annual loan losses observed during the previous three years. Historically, the loan
losses allowance at the end of year has always significantly exceeded the next year’s loan losses.

Management implemented this change in accounting estimate taking into consideration that the
Bank {s a government/not for profit institution, whose mission is to carry out public poticy on
economic development. Unlike private and commercial financial institutions, the Bank does not
respond to private shareholders and is prohibited from accepting deposits from individuals, and
notably limited in accepting deposits from private institutions. The Bank's main source of
tiquidity is other government institutions, which are part of the same administrative apparatus.

Would management have maintained the methodology of calculating the allowance for loan losses
used in prior years, the balance of the allowance would have been approximately $29.5 miltion.

Interest-bearing deposits with other banks, commercial paper, investments, and securities
purchased under agreements to resell decreased by $236.4 million when compared to balances as
of June 30, 2014, mainly due to a decrease of $199.5 million in time deposits.

At June 30, 2015, the Bank's total liabilities were $676.1 million compared to $924.2 million at
June 30, 2014. The decrease of $248.1 million represents 26.8% of the 2014 totat liabilities.

Total time deposits were $212.1 million as of June 30, 2015. Time deposits consist primarily of
certificates of deposit of public funds from other governmental institutions, which totaled
$200.8 million. Deposits from other financial institutions were $11.3 million. Totat time deposits
decreased by $199.5 million. As of year-end, the total promissory notes and other note payable
balance was $420.4 million.

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase decreased by $16.9 million, from $45.7 million in
2014 to $28.8 million in 2015. Fluctuations in these securities are due to specific market
conditions, which provide the Bank with funds and investment opportunities to generate net
revenue,

The Bank had net position of $168.8 million at June 30, 2015, and an increase of $2.8 million or
1.7% when compared to June 30, 2014. Additional information about net position composition is
presented in Note 11 to the basic financial statements.
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Comparison of 2015 and 2014 Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Condensed financial information on revenue, expenses, and changes in net position is presented
below (in thousands):

Revenue, Expenses, and Increase/(decrease)
Changes in Net Position 2015 2014 Amount Percentage
Interest income:
Interest income from loans S 17,022 S 15,293 5 1,729 11%
Interest income from investments 25,678 35,832 {10,154} (28)%
Total interest income 42,700 51,125 {8,425) {16)%
Total non-Interest (loss)/income (7,331) 2,918 {10,249) {351)%
Total operating revenue 35,369 54,043 (18,674) (35)%
Operating expenses:;
Provision for loan losses 2,200 10,960 (8,760 {80)%
Total fnterest expense 22,778 29,559 (6,781} {23)%
Total noninterest expenses 12,986 12,425 561 5%
Total operating expenses 37,964 57,944 (14,980) (28)%
Operating (loss)/income {2,595} 1,099 {3,694) {336)%
Capital contribution 5,433 4,816 617 13%
Net income and change
in net position $ 2,838 5 5,915 $ (3,077} {52)%

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Bank presents an operating loss of $2.6 million when
compared to the operating income of $1.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2014. The
decrease in operating income resulted from the net effect of the following:

a. Interest Income

Total interest income decreased by approximately 16.5% or $8.4 million, from $51.1
million in 2014 to $42.7 million in 2015. This decrease in interest income was mainly
the result of decreased average transaction volumes during the fiscal year, netted by
a slight increase in average interest rates.

b. Non-interest Income

Non-interest income decreased by approximately $10.2 million, from a $2.9 million
gain in fiscal year 2014 to a $7.3 million loss in 2015. This decrease was mainly due
to net realized and unrealized losses on investments of $8.3 million.

The net reatized and unrealized losses on investment result from the combined effect
of $6.1 million net unreatized losses in venture capital investments, $1.8 million net
unrealized losses in investment securities and approximately $300,000 net realized
losses from the disposition of certain investments.
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c. Provision for Loan Losses

Compared to 2014, the provision for loan losses shows a decrease of $8.8 million.
Impaired loans requiring an allowance for loan losses decreased by $11.7 million,
from $42.3 millien in 2014 to $30.6 mitlion in 2015, and the specific reserve for these
decreased by $6.3 miltion, from $13.6 million to $7.3 million. As a percentage of the
total loans portfolio, impaired loans represent 34.8% and 28.1% at June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively. Loans charged off during fiscal year 2015 increased by $4.3
million when compared to 2014, from $14.9 million in 2014 to $19.2 million in 2015.
As a percentage of the total loans portfolio, the allowance for loan losses represents
5.9% and 9.9% at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Loan collections decreased from $127.5 million during fiscal year 2014 to $121.3
million for fiscal year 2015.

d. Interest Expense

Total interest expense decreased by 22.9% or $6.8 million, from $29.6 million in 2014
to $22.8 million in 2015. This decrease in interest expense was mainly the result of
decreased average principal balances owed.

e. Non-interest Expenses

Nen-interest expenses increased by approximately $560,000 or 4.5% during fiscal year
2015. This increase in non-interest expenses resulted from the net effect of the
following:

» Provision for foreclosed assets increased 55.6% or $500,000, from $900,000 in
2014 to $1.4 million in 2015.

e Salarles and employee benefits decreased by 6.1% or $519,000, from
approximately $8.6 million in 2014 to approximately $8.1 million in 2015. The
decrease is mainly due to a decrease in employee benefits.

+ Occupancy and related expenses (including depreciation and amortization)
increased by 3.3% or $23,000, from approximately $707,000 in 2014 to
approximately $730,000 in 2015.

» Advertising expense increased by 32% or $85,000, from approximately $263,000
in 2014 to approximately $348,000 in 2015.

¢ Professional fees decreased by 1.9% or $7,000, from approximately $382,000 in
2014 to approximately $375,000 in 2015.
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* All other non-interest expenses increased by 30.9% or $496,000, from
approximately $1.6 million in 2014 to approximately $2.1 million in 2015. The
increase is mainly due to contributions to the central government’s General
Fund for approximately $418,000.

Comparison of 2014 and 2013 Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position

Condensed financial information on assets, liabilities, and net position is presented below
(dollar amounts n thousands):

Increase/(decrease)
Net pasition 2014 2013 Amount Percentage
Assets;
Current assets S 339,895 S 143,231 $ 196,664 137%
Noncurrent assets 750,351 1,151,936 {401,585) (35)%
Total assets 1,090,246 1,295,167 (204,921) {16)%
Liabilities:
Current ljabititles 458,298 416,792 51,506 12%
Noncurrent liabilities 455,950 718,293 (262,343) a7)%
Total liabilities 924,248 1,135,085 (210,837) (19)%
Net position:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt {110} {530) 420 (79)%
Restricted for special loan programs 18,077 13,259 4,818 36%
Unrestricted 148,030 147,353 677 —%
Net position § 165,997 5 160,082 § 5,915 4%

At June 30, 2014, the Bank's total assets were $1,090.2 million ($57.9 million from EDBCI)
compared to $1,295.2 million at June 30, 2013 ($286.4 million from EDBCI). The decrease of
$205 million represents 15.8% of the 2013 total assets balance.

Total loan portfolio increased by 11.3% when compared to balances as of June 30, 2013. Loan
disbursements decreased from $191.9 million in 2013 to $177.5 million in 2014, while principal
collected on loans decreased from $143.7 million for fiscal year 2013 to $127.5 million for fiscal
. year 2014, The related allowance for loan losses decreased by $1.7 million or 4.8% of the 2013
balance. The net loan portfolio increased by $36.8 million,

Interest-bearing deposits with other banks, commercial paper, investments, and securities
purchased under agreements to resell decreased by $242.1 million when compared to balances as
of June 30, 2013, mainly due to a decrease of $261.8 million in promissory notes.

At June 30, 2014, the Bank’s total liabilities were $924.2 million compared to $1,135.1 million at
June 30, 2013. The decrease of $210.9 million represents 18.6% of the 2013 total liabilities.

Total time deposits were $411.7 million as of June 30, 2014. Time deposits consist primarily of
certificates of deposit of public funds from other governmental institutions, which totaled
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$390.3 million. Deposits from other financial institutions were 521.4 million. Total time deposits
increased by 581.4 million. As of year-end, the total promissory notes and other note payable
balance was $441.2 million.

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase decreased by $30.5 million, from $76.2 million in
2013 to $45.7 million in 2014. Fluctuations in these securities are due to specific market
conditions, which provide the Bank with funds and investment opportunities to generate net
revenue.

The Bank had net position of $166 million at June 30, 2014, an increase of $5.9 million or 3.7%
when compared to June 30, 2013, Additional information about net position composition is
presented in Note 11 to the basic financial statements,

Comparison of 2014 and 2013 Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Condensed financial information on revenue, expenses, and changes in net position is
presented below (in thousands):

Revenue, expenses, and Increase/(decrease)
changes in net position 2014 2013 Amount Percentage
Interest income:
Interest income from bans S 15,293 S 14,268 S 1,025 ri3
Interest Income from fnvestments 35,832 53,562 (17,730) (33)%
Total interest Income 51,125 67,830 (16,705) (25)%
Total non-interest Income (loss) 2,918 1,075 1,843 171%
Total operating revenue 54,043 68,905 (14,862) (22y%
Operating expenses:
Provision for loan losses 10,950 10,788 172 2%
Total interest expense 29,559 44,102 (14,543) (338
Total noninterest expenses 12,425 13,903 {1,478) (11)%
Total operating expenses 52,944 58,793 (15,849) (231%
Operating Income 1,099 112 987 881%
Capital contribution 4,816 2,458 2,358 96%
Net Income and change
In net position S 5,915 ) 2,570 $ 3,345 130%

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the Bank presents an operating income of $1.1 million when
compared to the operating income of $111,000 for the year ended June 30, 2013. The increase in
operating income resulted from the net effect of the following:

(a) Interest Income

Total interest income decreased by approximately 24.6% or $16.7 millien, from
$67.8 million in 2013 to $51.1 million in 2014, This decrease in interest income was
mainly the result of decreased average transaction volumes during the fiscal year,
with basically no change in average interest rates.
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(b) Noninterest Income

Noninterest income increased by approximately $1.8 million, from $1.1 million in
fiscal year 2013 to $2.9 million income in 2014. This increase was mainly due to an
increase in the net reatized and unrealized gains on investments of $2.1 million.

The increase in the net realized and unrealized gains on investment results from the
combined effect of a $894,000 decrease in net unrealized gains of investment
securities and a $3 miltion increase in net realized gains from the disposition of
certain investments.

{c¢) Provision for Loan Losses

Compared to 2013, the provision for loan losses shows an increase of $172,000.
Impaired loans requiring an allowance for loan losses decreased by $4.7 million, from
$47 million in 2013 to $42.3 million in 2014, and the specific reserve for these
decreased by $1.7 million, from $15.3 miilion to $13.6 million. As a percentage of the
total loans portfolio, impaired loans represent 28.1% and 28% at June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. Loans charged off during fiscal year 2014 increased by
$5.4 million when compared to 2013, from $9.5 million in 2013 to $14.9 million in
2014, As a percentage of the total loans portfolio, the allowance for loan losses
represents 9.9% and 11.5% at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Loan collections decreased from $143.7 million during fiscal year 2013 to
$127.5 miltion for fiscal year 2014.

(d) Interest Expense

Total interest expense decreased by 33% or $14.5 million, from $44.1 million in 2013
to $29.6 million in 2014. This decrease in interest expense was the result of
decreased average principal balances owed.

(e) Noninterest Expenses

Noninterest expenses decreased by approximately $1.5 million or 10.6% during fiscal
year 2014. This decrease in noninterest expenses resulted from the net effect of the
following:

. Provision for losses on loan guarantees decreased from $1,062,000 in 2013 to
$16,000 in 2014, The decrease is due to a reduction in loan guarantees paid
under the Loan Guarantee Program created by Law no. 9 of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico in May 9, 2009. Funds for payment of these guarantees were
assigned to the Bank under Executive Order OE-2010-005, recorded as a reserve
for possible losses on loan guarantees and reclassified to capital contribution in
the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the year
ended June 30, 2014.
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* Provision for foreclosed assets decreased 10% or $100,000, from $1 million in
2013 to 5900,000 in 2014.

» Sataries and employee benefits decreased by 3.6% or 5319,000, from
approximately $8.9 miltion in 2013 to approximately 5$8.6 million in 2014, The
decrease is mainly due to a decrease in total headcount.

° Occupancy and related expenses (including depreciation and amortization)
decreased by 6.2% or 47,000, from approximately $754,000 in 2013 to
approximately $707,000 in 2014.

. Advertising expense increased by 2.5% or $6,000, from approximately $257,000
in 2013 to approximately $263,000 in 2014,

o Professional fees increased by 22.6% or $70,000, from approximately $312,000
in 2013 to approximately $382,000 in 2014. The increase is mainly due to an
increase in other professional services during 2014, mainly consultants for the
Credit area. !

. All other noninterest expenses decreased by approximately $44,000 as
compared to flscal year 2012,

Analysis of the Overall Financial Position and Resuits of Operations

The average balance of funds available from deposits and the related investments reflect a
decrease when comparing 2015 to 2014, mainly due to a decrease in time deposits. When
compared with fiscal year 2014, time deposits balances from other governmental and
financial institutions decreased 48.5% or $199.5 million in 2015, providing tolerable levels of
funding to maintain the Bank's activities. Interest rates during fiscal years 2015 and 2014
remained low.

During the fiscal years 2015 and 2014, $2,312,000 and 52,270,000 were recovered in
previously charged off loans, respectively.

Discussion of Significant Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt Activity

During fiscal year 2015, approximately 5300,000 in capital assets were acquired and
approximately $117,000 were retired. During the same period, $29.2 million in promissory
notes matured or amortized, while none were issued. As of year-end, the total promissory
notes and other note payable balance was $412 million. Additional information about capital
assets and long-term debt activity is presented in Notes 5 and 9 to the basic financial
statements, respectively.
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Contacting the Bank’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Bank’s finances for
those interested. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to the Economic Development Bank
for Puerto Rico, P.O. Box 2134, San Juan, PR 00922-21134,
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EDB EDB
Operating Capitat
ASSETS Fund Investment Efiminations Total
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks S 6,826,075 4 . S - $ 6,826,075
Interest-bearing depasits and commercial paper 10,800,000 11,597,069 {11,597,069) 10,800,000
Investments 18,875,175 . . 18,875,175
Lcans, net of allowance for loan losses of $11,455,678 131,277,915 . . 111,277,915
Accrued interest receivable 7,239,760 1,015 (1,015} 7,239,760
bue from other fund 1,117,831 - {1,117,831) -
Totalcurrent assets 176,136,756 11,598,084 (12,715,915} 175,018,925
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Investments 439,645,150 41,273,033 . 480,918,223
Loans, net of alowance for loan losses of 57,847,979 175,172,582 - - 175,172,962
Other assets 5,076,567 - . 5,076,567
Capital assets:
Land 2,735,000 - . 2,735,000
Building and improvements 11,589,506 . . 11,589,506
Fumlture and equipment 5,121,878 - - 5,121,878
Less: accumulated depreciation and amartization (10,744,572) - - (10,744,572}
Total capital assets 8,701,812 - - 8,701,812
Total non-current assets 628,596,551 41,273,033 - 669,869,584
Totalassats § B04,733,307 S 52,871,117  S(12,M5915) § 844,888,509
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Time deposits S 23,74,975 S - $(11,597,068) § 212,137,906
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 28,756,000 - . 28,756,000
Accrued Interest payable 6,310,844 - (1,015) 6,309,829
Promissory notes and other note payable 7,237,326 - - 7,237,326
Bue to other fund . 1,117,831 (1,117,831) -
Other current. Gabilities 2,405,525 {401) - 2,405,123
Total current Yabllities 268,444,670 1,117,429 {12,715,915) 256,846,184
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES;
Promissory notes and other note payable 413,154,585 - - 413,154,586
Other Habilitles 6,052,481 - - 6,052,481
Total non-current Habllitles 419,207,067 - - 419,207,067
Total liabitities § 687,651,137 5 1,117,429 S(12,715H5) S 676,053,251
NET POSITION
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS H 307,816 5 - 5 - S 307,816
RESTRICTED FOR SPECIAL LOAN PROGRAMS 23,837,445 . . 23,837,445
UNRESTRICTED 92,935,309 51,751,688 - 144,689,957
Total net position 5 117,081,570 § 51,753,688 § - § 168,835,253

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements,
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JUNE 30, 2014

EDB EDB
Operating Capital
ASSETS Fund Investment Eliminations Total
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks § 6,155,939 - 1 - $ 6,155,939
Interest-bearing depos!ts and commercial paper - 11,605,775 {11,605,775) .
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 55,727,000 - - 55,727,000
Investments 138,982,584 - - 138,962,584
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $11,697,3%4 129,719,826 - - 129,719,826
Accrued Interest recelvable 9,309,800 1] {903} 9,309,800
Due from other fund 12,489 - {12,489) .
Totat cumrent assats 339,507,638 11,606,678 (11,819,167) 319,895,149
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Investments 505,016,578 45,309,043 - 552,325,626
Loans, net of aliowance for ban losses of 512,324,149 180,866,885 . . 180,866,685
Other assets 8,344,709 . - B,344,709
Capltal assets:
Land 2,735,000 . - 1,735,000
Building and impravements 11,503,087 . . 11,503,087
Furniture and equipment 5,024,805 - - 5,024,803
Less: accumulated depreclation and amortization {10,449,474) - - {10,449, 474}
Total capital assets 8,813,418 - - 8,313,418
Total non-current assets 704,041,3% 465,309,048 - 750,350,438
Total assets $1,040,99,28  § 5795726 S(11,619,167)  § 1,090,245,587
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Time depasits $ a0 - $(11,605775) § 411,683,545
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 45,690,000 - - 45,690,000
Accrued interest payable 7,541,707 - (903} 7,540,804
Promissory notes and other note payable 528,924 . - 528,924
Due to other fund . 12,489 {12,489) -
Other current lablitles 2,834,936 {401) - 2,854,515
Total current tabilitles 479,905,287 12,088 (11,619,167) 468,298,208
NON-CLRRENT LIABILITIES:
Promissory nates and ather note payable 449,608,584 - - 449,608,684
QOther Uabllities 6,341,481 - - 6,341,481
Total non-current Hiabiities 455,950,165 - - 433,950,165
Total Habilitles § 935,855,452 $ 12,088 511,619,167} 5§ 924,248,371
NET POSITION
NET INVESTMENT I CAPITAL ASSETS $ (109,502) § . $ - § {109,502)
RESTRICTED FOR SPECIAL LOAN PROGRAMS 18,076,756 - - 18,076,756
UNRESTRICTED $0,126,32 57,903,638 - 148,029,960
Tatal net position S 108,093,576 5 57903638 S . § 165,997,214
The accompanying nates are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

EDA EDB
Operating Capital
Fund Investment Eliminations Total
OPERATING REVENUE:
INTEREST INCOME:
Depasits with other banks and commerclal paper S 062 5 41,191 5 19 5 34,062
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 415,178 . . 45,178
Invastments 25,228,530 - . 25,228,580
Loans 17,022,100 - - 17,022,100
Total interest income 42,699,920 41,191 {41,191) 42,699,920
NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Net realized and unreallzed losses on investments {2,153,079) {6,121,871) . {8,274,950)
Other income 993,535 . (43,454) 544,081
Total noninterest loss {1,159,544) (6,121,871) (49,454) {7,330,869)
Total operating revenua/{ioss) 41,540,376 {6,080,680) (99,645) 35,149,051
DOPERATING EXPENSES:
Provision for loan losses 2,200,000 - . 2,200,500
INTEREST EXPENSE:
Time deposits 2,537,090 - (41,191} 2,495,899
Securitles sold under agreements to repurchase 158,211 - - 158,211
Promissory notes and other note payabla 20,124,506 . - 20,124,506
Tatal interest expense 22,819,807 - {41,1%1) 12,778,616
MON-INTEREST EXPENSE:
Salarfes and employes benefits 8,034,262 - - 8,034,262
Depreclation and amortization 387,366 . . 387,356
Occupancy and related expenses 342,792 - - 342,753
Professional fees 354,971 69,270 {49,454) 374,731
Advertising 347,967 . . 347,967
Other 3,498,791 . . 3,498,791
Total non-interest expenses 12,966,060 69,270 {49,454) 12,985,876
Total operating expenses 37,585,857 89,270 [90,645) 37,964,492
Operating loss 3,554,509 (6,149,950} . {2,595,441)
Capital contribution 5,413,485 . - 5,431,485
Increase/{decrease} In net position 8,987,954 (6,149,950} - 2,838,044
TUTAL NET POSITION, beginning of year 108,091,576 57,903,638 - 165,997,214
TUTAL NET POSITION, end of year $117,084,570  § 51,753,688  § - 5168,835,258

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of these basic financlal statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

EDB EDB
Operating Capitat
Fund Investment Eliminations Total
OPERATING REVENUE:
INTEREST INCOME:
Deposits with other banks and commercial paper S 14650 § 54366 §  (54,366) S 114,650
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1,067,582 - - 1,067,582
Investments 10,361,09 4,289,231 . 34,650,327
Loans 15,292,876 - - 15,292,876
Total interest Income 46,836, 04 4,341,597 {54,366} 51,125,435
NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Net realized and unreaized gains/(losses) on Investments {2,238,910) 4,720,074 - 1,481,164
Dther income 458,570 10,000 {42,015) 436,555
Total noninterest Income/(loss) {1,770,340) 4,730,074 {42,015) 2,917,719
Total operating revenue 45,065,864 9,073,671 [96,381) 54,043,154
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Pravision for ban losses 10,950,000 - . 0,960,800
INTEREST EXPENSE;
Time deposits 3,700,841 - {54,386) 3,646,465
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 768,710 - - 768,72
Promissory notes and other note payable 21,314,343 3,629,428 - 25,143,711
Total interest expense 25,783,546 3,829,428 {54,366) 29,559,008
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE: .
Salarles and employee benefits 8,525,594 27,876 . 8,553,470
Depreciation and amortization 361,885 - . 361,885
Occupancy and related expenses 345,240 - . 345,240
Professional fees 341,04 62,876 {42,015} 381,895
Advertising 263,550 - . 263,550
Other 2,519,254 33 - 2,519,287
Total non-interest expenses 12,375,557 90,785 (42,015} 12,425,127
Tatal operating expenses 49,120,503 3,920,213 (96,38%) 52,944,135
Operating Income/(loss} {4,054,619) 3,153,458 . 1,098,81%
Capital contribution 4,815,018 - - 4,815,018
Increase in net position 761,319 5,153,458 . 5,914,837
TOTAL NET POSITION, beglnning of year $07,332,197 52,750,180 - 160,082,377
TOTAL NET POSITION, end of year $108,093,576  § 57,503,638 § - $165,997.214

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these basic Anancial statements.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Operating Capital
Fund Investment Eliminations Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash payments for goods and services S(an 4 & (892700 S - $ (3,498,484)
Cash payments to employees (8,444, 145) - - (8,444,145)
Cash recelved from interest and principal on lbans 139,481,764 . . 139,481,764
Other payments 1,016,464 1,112,342 - 2,128,806
Cash disbursed for lbaned amounts {121,569,942) - . (121,569,942)
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,094,927 1,043,072 - 8,097,999
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase/(decrease) in:
Time depasits {199,554,745) - 8,706  (199,546,019)
Securitles sold under agreements to rapurchase (16,934,000) . . {16,934,000)
Repayment of promissory notes (29,216,711) - - (29,216,771)
Interest paid on time deposits, securitles sold under
agreements to repurchase, and promissary notes (23,515,295) - 41,079 {23,474,216)
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (269,220,811) - 49,785 {269,171,026)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital contribution 5,433,485 - - 5,433,485
Acquisition of capital assets {275,762) - . {275,762)
Principal payment on capital debt {528,924} . - {528,924)
Interest pald on capital debt (535,375) - {535,375)
Net cash pravided by capital and related
financing activitles 4,091,424 . - 4,093,424
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of investments (7,424,999) {1,142,857) . (8,567,856)
Principal repayments and maturities of investments 191,750,718 50,000 . 191,800,718
Net decrease/(lncrease) In:
Interest-bearing depasits with other banks {10,800,000) 8,706 {8,708) {10,800,000)
Securitles purchased under agreements to resell 55,727,000 - - 55,727,000
Interest collected on tnvestments, notes recelvable,
interest-bearing deposits with other banks, and
commearcial paper 27,290,024 4,079 (41,079) 27,290,024
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets 2,199,853 . - 2,199,853
Met cash provided hy/{used in) Investing activities 258,742,596 {1,043,072) {49,785) 257,649,739
Net increase in cash and due from banks 670,136 - . 670,136
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, beginning of year 6,155,939 . - 6,155,939
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, end of year 5 6826075 § - S - 5 6,826,075
Contlnues

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financlal statements,
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Continued £DB EDS
Operating Capital
Fund Investment Eliminations Total

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY QPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cperating income (bss) § 3554509 5 (5149.95) ¢ . § (2,595,442}
Adfustments to reconcle pperating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 387,344 - - 387,356
Het realized and unrealized loss on investments 2,153,019 6,129,872 . 8,281,95%
Provislon for loan bsses 2,200,000 . . 2,200,000
Provision for losses on farechsed assets 1,400,000 . - 1,400,000
Loss on sale of foreclosed assets 48,677 - . 48,677
Interest Income from investments (25,677,820) {41,191) 41,191 (25,677,820
Decrease In accrued Interest recalvable from loans 457,836 . . 457,83
Interest expense 22,819,806 - {41,191} 12,778,615
Decrease In other assets 18,000 1,105,342 . 1,123,342
Decrease In bans receivable 411,886 - - 431,884
Increase in other Habilities {738,412} - - {738,412}
Net cash provided by operating activities § 7054927 S 1,043,000 5 - § 8,0979%

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION AND HON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:

Decrease n falr valye of investments § (1,846,338 § (612887 § . $ (7.975,210)
Transfers from loans to foreclosed real estats S 1,29728 S - $ - $ 129,718
Retirement of fully depreciated capital assets $ 968 S - ] - S 98

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

EDB EDB
Operating Capitat
Fund Investment Eliminations Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash payments for goods and services S (2,614,876) 5 (62,909 S . $ (1,677,785
Cash payments to employees (8,322,848) {37,253) - (8,360,121)
Cash recefved from Interest and principal on loans 143,950,956 - - 141,960,956
Qther (receipts) payments {186,257) 14,214 - {332,043}
Cash disbursed for lbaned amounts {177,479,304) - - (177,479,304)
Net cash used in operating activities {44,822,349) (65,948) + (44,888,297)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase/{decrease) [n:
Time depasits 78,791,581 . 2,574,268 B1,366,251
Securitles sold under agreements to repurchase (30,510,000) - - {30,510,000)
Issuance of promissory notes - 5 A 5
Repayment of promissary notes (28,632,932) {233,200,000) . {261,332,932)
Interest paid on time deposits, securitles sold under
agreements to repurchase, and promissory notas {24,275, 942) {4,274, 709) 54,290 (28,496,361}
Net cash used in noncapltal financing activitles {4,626,891) (237,474,709) 2,628,558 (219,473,042}
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capftal contribution 4,816,018 - - 4,816,018
Acquisition of capital assets (283,282) . - {283,282)
Principal payment on capital debt (498,985) . - {498,985)
Interest paid on capital debt (365,314) - - (5645,314)
Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activitles 3,468,417 - . 3,468,437
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of investments {36,725,000) (9,264,206) - (45,989,284}
Principal repayments and maturities of lnvestments 106,885,998 239,388,406 - 346,275,404
Net decrease/(lncrease) in:
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks . 2,574,268 (2,574,268) .
Securitles purchased under agreements to resell (55,727,000) . - {55,727,000)
Interest collected on investments, nates recelvable,
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks, and
commerclal paper 31,356,465 4,842,269 (54,290} 36, 144,444
Proceeds from sales of foraclosed assets 779,057 . - 779,097
Net cash provided by Investing activitles 46 570, 560 237,540,657 {2,628,558) 281,482,659
Het increase In cash and due from banks 589,757 . - 589,757
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, beginning of year 5,566,182 - . 5,566,182
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, end of year § 6,155,919 S . 5 g § &,155,93%
Continues
The accompartying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Continues EDB EDB
Operating Capital
Fund Investment Elminations Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) TO NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income/(loss} § (405463 5 5193458 8 . S 1,098,319
Adjustments to reconcile operating Income/{loss) t net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 351,885 . 154,885
Net rezlized and unrealized/{gain} loss on investments 2,138,910 {4,672,5374) . (2,433,164}
Provision for foan lsses 10,960,000 . . 10,960,000
Provision for tosses on foreclosed assets 900,000 . - 900,000
Provision for losses on koan guarantees 16,250 - . 16,250
Loss on sale of foreclosed assets 172,693 - . 172,693
Interest income from investments 131,54),328) (4,343, 597) 54,366 {35,832,559)
Decrease fn accrued interest receivable from toans {340,9191 - . (340,919)
Interest expense 25,781,946 1,829,408 (34,366} 29,559,008
Increase in other assets {981,313 (23,787) - (1,005,102}
Increase in loans receivable 148,470,304) . - {48,470,304)
(Increase)/decreass In other tabiitles 134,472 {9,376) - 125,086
Net cash used in operating activities 4482349 5 (65948 § . $ {44,888,297)
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION AND NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:
Increase/(decrease) In fair value of fnvestments § (00999 § 1,672,014 - §  (N,925
Transfers from loans to foreclosed real estate S %99 § . $ - § 696,959
Retirement of fuly depreciated capital assets § A § - § - § 44,706

The accompanylng notes are an integra! part of these basic financial statements,
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

1'

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Economic Devetopment Bank for Puerto Rico {the “Bank”} was created by the Puerto Rico
Development Bank Act No. 22 of July 24, 1985, as amended, and constitutes a public
corporation of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the “Commonwealth"), The Bank is a
component unit included in the Commonwealth's financial reporting entity and is a
separate legal entity. The Bank promotes the development of the private sector of the
economy of Puerto Rico, This is accomplished by making direct loans, loan guarantees,
loan participations, and/or direct investments available to any person or business
organization devoted to manufacturing, agriculture, trade, tourism, or other service
enterprises, whose economic activity may have the effect of substituting imports,
without this being understcod as a limitation.

The Bank’s operation consists principally in granting commercial loans and capital
investments to small businesses, receiving deposits from other governmental or
commercial financial institutions, issuing notes and other debts, and investing in
securities and other financial instruments, similar to a private commercial bank. Al
revenue, such as interest, gains, dividends, and fees related to these activities, are
presented as operating income. All expenses related to these revenue activities, such as
interest expense, provision for losses, and administrative expenses, are considered
operating expenses. For financial statements presentation, operating revenue fis
segregated between interest income and non-interest income, and operating expenses
between interest expense, provision for loan losses, and other non-interest expenses.

The Bank is not required to pay any taxes on any assets acquired or to be acquired for its
operations or activities, or on the revenue received from any of its operations or
activities.

In 2006, the Bank's board of directors created a component unit named Economic
Development Bank Capital Investment (“EDBCI"). EDBCI is a blended component unit of
the Bank, which is presented as a business-type activity. The balances and transactions of
EDBCI have been blended with the Bank in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP") because, though legally separated, it was created and can
be dissolved through resolutions of the Bank’s board of directors. The board of directors
of EDBCI is the same as that of the Bank. EDBCI operation consists only of supporting the
Bank's mission in promoting the development of the private sector of the economy of
Puerto Rico, investing in equity and other forms of capital of start-up, early, or later
stage local enterprises or venture capital funds. During fiscal year 2007, the Bank
transferred its capital investment portfolio, amounting to $27,445,966, as initial capital
to EDBCI. An additional $30 mitlion was approved for new capital investments as deemed
necessary in EDBCI investment activity. Also, EDBCI was authorized to invest in corporate
paper as part of a new notes payable program like the one described in Note 9.

The accounting policies followed by the Bank are in accordance with GAAP, as applicable
to governmental entities. The business-type activities of the Bank are accounted for as an
enterprise fund. Accordingly, the Bank follows the accrual basis of accounting and the
economic resources measurement focus. Revenue is recognized when earned, regardless
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

of when received, and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless of when paid.
The following is a description of the most significant accounting policies:

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant
estimates made by management include the allowance for loan losses, losses on
foreclosed assets, losses on loan guarantees, and venture capital investments; the useful
lives of capital assets; the valuation of capital assets and investments; and accruals for
legal claims and other contingencies. The current economic environment has increased
the degree of uncertainty inherent in those estimates and assumptions.

Basis of Presentation - The basic financial statements are presented in accrual basis of
accounting,

Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell - The Bank enters into purchases of
securities under agreements to resell, as authorized by Act number 22 of July 24, 1985,
Article 3. The amounts advanced under these agreements are reflected as an asset in the
accompanying statements of net position. The securities underlying these agreements,
mainly interest-bearing deposits with other banks and government securities, are held
under safekeeping by a financial institution independent of the transaction.,

Investments - The Bank follows GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. This Statement
establishes accounting and financfal reporting standards for all investments held by
governmental external investment pools. For most other governmental entities, it
requires that most investments be reported at fair value in the statements of net
position.

The governing board authorizes the Bank to invest in the following:

s U.S. government and agencies obligations

. Obligations of the Commonwealth, its agencies, municipalities, public
corporations, and instrumentalities

Certificates and time deposits

Commercial paper

Bankers' acceptance

Federal funds

Securities purchased under agreements to resell
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities
Corporate notes

External investment paols
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

The Bank's investment policies also establish limitations and other guidelines on amounts
to be invested in the aforementioned investment categories. Such policies provide the
requirements in the institutions with which investment transactions can be entered into.
In addition to the Assets, Liabilities, and Investments Committee (“ALCO"), and the Board
of Directors of the Bank may approve, as necessary, other transactions that the Bank may
enter into,

Investments in debt securities are presented at fair value, including the effect of
applicable put options as described in Note 9. Money market investments and
participating interest-earning investment contracts with a remaining maturity at time of
purchase of one year or less are presented at amortized cost. Changes in the fair value of
investments are presented in net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments in
the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position. Fair value is
determined based on quoted market prices.

Investments also include common and preferred stocks of various local enterprises that
do not have readily determinable fair value and investment positions in external
investment pools. The investments in common and preferred stocks are temporary and
the Bank generally does not have the ability to exercise significant influence over the
investees’ operating and financial policies, and therefore, such investments are carried
at the lower of cost or net realizable value based on management's evaluation of the
financial condition of each investee. Because of uncertainties inherent in the estimation
process, management'’s evaluation of the financial condition of the investees, and the
related assessment of net realizable value may change in the near term.

Investment positions in external investment pools are reported at the net asset value of
the shares held by the Bank. Such net asset value represents the fair value per share of
the pools’ underlying net assets. The financial statements of these pools include
securities whose fair values have been estimated by the pools’ managers in the absence
of readily ascertainable market values. The Bank’s external investment pools that are not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission are supervised by the
Commissioner of Financial Institutions, which is the governmental agency that regulates
venture capital funds and the banking industry in Puerto Rico.

Loans - Loans are presented at the unpaid principal balance reduced by the allowance for
loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. In accordance with the
Bank’s charge-off policy approved on February 2012, unsecured loans are charged off
against the allowance for loans losses within 60 days after they have payments due over
120 days. For collateralized loans, charge-offs are recognized for the amount of collateral
deficlency within 60 days after they have payments due over 180 days. Although one of
the factors evaluated by management in making this assessment is the number of days
past due, the policy also allows the Bank to charge-off loans when special circumstances
arise and upon the approval of the corresponding level of authority. Recoveries of loans
previously charged off are credited to the allowance for loan losses,
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

The accrual of interest on loans ceases when loans become past due 90 days or more
and/or on those loans undergoing judicial or bankruptcy proceedings. Once a loan is
placed on nonaccrual status, all accrued but uncollected interest is reversed from
interest income. Interest on all nonaccrual loans is thereafter included in earnings only to
the extent actually collected. Loans designated as non-accruing are not returned to an
accrual status until interest is received on a current basis and those factors indicative of
doubtfu! collection cease to exist.

Collections received for nonaccrual loans are applied, for financial statement purposes,
to principal owed. The change in payment application for nonaccrual loans is intended to
reduce the recorded exposure to losses as well as the related required levels of the
allowance for losses. Delinquency history and collection efforts are monitored in
accordance to the full accrual amortization schedule of the loan.

The altowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed adequate by management
to absorb potential losses in the loan portfolio. Management's determination of the
adequacy of the allowance is based on an evaluation of the portfolio, past loan loss
experience, economic conditions, volume growth, composition of the loan portfolio, and
other relevant factors. Allowances for impaired loans are generally determined based on
collateral values or the present value of estimated cash flows. Changes in the allowance
relating to impaired loans are charged or credited to the provision for loan losses.
Because of uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, management's estimate of
credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio, and the related allowance may change in the
near term.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Bank changed the method for calculating the
reserve for loan losses by adjusting the resulting amount, calculated in a similar way as in
prior years, to an amount that may not exceed the maximum amount of annual loans
charge-off's recorded during the most recent three years. As a consequence the reserve
for loan losses was reduced by $10.2 million, to a balance of $19.3 million. If the reserve
for loan losses would have been calculated as in prior years, following GAAP, the balance
would have been $29.5 million,

Management betieves that due to the nature of the Bank, which is extremely unique in
the U.S. scene, GAAP may have not considered such an operation at the moment of
formulating its guidelines. Development banks are entities that have mainly risen in
countries with high levels of poverty, where the direct impact of the governmental
function by means of loans to the small and medium size entrepreneurs is vital to the
creation of jobs and economic development. Management believes that full compliance
with GAAP in this specific aspect, and especially In this historical moment, puts an unfair
burden in the standing reflected in the Bank's basic financial statements.

Classification of Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses - The current portion of loans
includes the active principal of loans with maturities of one year or less and past due
over three months and/or those loans undergoing judicial or bankruptcy proceedings.
Also, these include the estimated current portion of loans with maturity over one year.
The resulting difference was reported as the noncurrent portion. The allowance for loan
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

losses was allocated between current and noncurrent proportionally based on the loan
classification.

Loan Guarantee Program - Guarantee fees on the loan guarantee program are
recognized as income when the fees are collected. Such fees are estimated not to exceed
related guarantee expenses. The accrual for losses on loan guarantees is based on
management’s evaluation of the potential loss on each guarantee, net of amounts
recoverable from collateral and the share of loss of the participating banks, and s
included in other liabilities. Because of uncertainties inherent in the estimation process,
management’s estimate of the provision for losses on loan guarantees, and the related
accrual for losses on loan guarantees may change in the near term.

Loan Origination Costs and Commitment Fees - The Bank defers loan origination and
commitment fees and direct origination costs. The net amount is amortized over the
contractual life of the related loan as a yield adjustment.

Real Estate Owned - Real estate owned acquired in satisfaction of loans is included tn
other assets and is held for sale. Properties acquired through forectosure are transferred
to real estate owned and recognized at the lower of fair value minus estimated costs to
sell or loan's carrying value, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent declines in the
value of real estate owned are provided for when it Is probable the cost will not be
recovered and that a loss will be incurred. An allowance for losses on real estate owned
is maintained for subsequent valuation adjustments on a specific property basis.

Capital Assets - Capital assets are defined by the Bank as assets with an individual initiat
cost of over $500 and expected useful lives of over one year. Capital assets are stated at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and amartization. Depreciation is computed on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets, which have
been determined to be 3 years for computer software, 5 years for all furniture and
equipment, and 40 years for building and improvements. Expenditures for major
improvements that extend the useful life of the asset are capitalized. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase - The Bank enters into sales of
securities under agreements to repurchase, as authorized by Act number 22 of July 24,
1985, Article 3. These agreements are presented as a liability in the accompanying
Statements of net position. The securities underlying these agreements are usually hetd
by the broker or its agent, with whom the agreement fs transacted.

Accounting for Compensated Absences - Compensated absences, such as unpaid
vacation and sick leave pay, are accrued when incurred using the pay or salary rates in
effect at the statement of net position date. An additional amount is accrued for certain
salary related benefits associated with the payment of compensated absences. Such
amounts are included in other liabilities and the accompanying financial statements.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Statements of Cash Flows - The accompanying statements of cash flows are presented in
accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of
Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting. For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash includes cash on
hand, amounts due from banks, and items in process of collection.

Deferral of Adoption of Accounting Pronouncements;

The Bank is required to adopt the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 (GASB No. 68)
“"Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension - an amendment of GASB 27", and GASB
Statement No. 71, "Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date, an amendment of GASB Statement No, 68" (GASB No. 71). These
statements were effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, The primary
objective of GASB No. 68 is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and
local governments for pensions, It also improves information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial support for pensfons that is provided by other
entities. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of
Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided
through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet
certain criteria.

The adoption of GASB No. 68 requires the Bank to obtain, from the Commonwealth
Employees’ Retirement System Administration, technical information regarding actuariat
valuations, discount rates, the Bank’s proportionate share of the net pension liability,
and deferred outflows and inflows of resources, among others. At the date of the
financial statements, and in spite of several formal requests from Bank's management,
the Puerto Rico Government Retirements System Administration did not provide the Bank
with the required information. Therefore, the Bank was unable to adopt the dispositions
of GASB No. 68.

At June 30, 2015 the Bank does not have the information available to implement the
requirements of Statement No. 68 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Accordingly, the Bank has not been able to determine and account for its proportionate
share of net pension obligation, deferred inflow of resources and deferred outflow of
resources related to pension costs and has not recognized the effect of current period
changes in net pension obligation, deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflow of
resources as these relate to pension costs. Recognition of these amounts would increase
liabilities, increase deferred outflow of resources, increase deferred inflow of resources,
increase the deficit, and change the pension expenses.

30

8D0, Puerto Rico, PSC, & Puerto Rice Professlonal Services Corporation, and 500 USVI, LLC, a United States Virgin Island’s timited Mabillty Compary, are
s of 800 | jonal Umited, & UK company limited by guaranlee, and form parl of the internstional BOO neiwork of Independent member firms.

BDO 13 the brand name for the BDO network 2nd Tor each of the BDO Member.



|IBDO

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements:

Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations (GASB No. 69) -
This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to
govemment combinations and disposals of government operations. As used in this
Statement, the term government combination includes a variety of transactions referred
to as mergers, acquisitions, and transfer of operations. The implementation of this
Statement had no impact in the accompanying basic financial statements.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Financial Guarantees (GASB
No. 70) - The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting
by state and local govemments that extend and receive non-exchange financial
guarantees. This Statement requires a governmental entity guarantor that offers a non-
exchange financial guarantee to another organization or government to recognize a
liability on its financial statements when it is more likely than not that the guarantor will
be required to make a payment to the obligation holders under the agreement. The
implementation of this Statement had no impact in the accompanying basic financial
statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

Fair Value Measurement and Application (GASB No. 72) - This Statement addresses
accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The
definition of fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. This Statement provides guidance for determining a fair value
measurement for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also provides guidance for
applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value
measurements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for
periods beginning after June 15, 2015.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not
within the Scope of GASB 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB
Statements 67 and 68. (GASB No .73) - This Statement establishes requirements for
defined benefit pensions that are not within the scope of Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as well as for the assets accumulated for purposes
of providing those pensions. In addition, it establishes requirements for defined
contribution pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 8. It also amends
certain provisions of Statement No. 67, Flnancial Reporting for Pension Plans, and
Statement 68 for pension plans and pensions that are within their respective scopes.

This Statement also clarifies the application of certain provisions of Statements 67 and 68
with regard to the following issues:

s Information that is required to be presented as notes to the 10-year schedules
of required supplementary information about investment-related factors that
significantly affect trends in the amounts reported,
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¢ Accounting and financial reporting for separately financed specific liabilities
of individual employers and nonemployer contributing entities for defined
benefit, pensions.

» Timing of employer recognition of revenue for the support of nonemployer
contributing entities not in a special funding situation.

The requirements of this Statement that address accounting and financial reporting by
employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not
within the scope of Statement 68 are effective for financial statements for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2016, and the requirements of this Statement that address
financial reporting for assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015. The requirements of this
Statement for pension plans that are within the scope of Statement 67 or for pensions
that are within the scope of Statement 68 are effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2015.

Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans
(GASB No. 74) - This Statement replaces Statements No. 43, Financlal Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. It also includes
requirements for defined contribution OPEB plans that replace the requirements for those
OPEB plans in Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, as amended, Statement 43, and
Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures. The objective of this Statement is to improve the
usefulness of information about postemployment benefits other than pensions {other
postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external financial
reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing
accountability. This Statement is effective for financial statements for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2016,

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Other Than Pension
(GASB No. 75) - This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45,
Accounting and Financlal Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and
Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. The primary objective of this Statement is to
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for
postemployment benefits other than pensions {other postemployment benefits or OPEB).
It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about
financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement is effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017.

The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local
Governments (GASB No. 76) - This Statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.
The objective of this Statement is to identify—in the context of the current governmental
financial reporting environment—the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting
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principles (“GAAP"). The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting
principles used to prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in
conformity with GAAP and the framework for selecting those principles. This Statement
reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the
use of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting
treatment for a transaction or other event s not specified within a source of
authoritative GAAP. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015, and should be apptied
retroactively.

Tax Abatement Disclosures (GASB No. 77) - This Statement requires governments that
enter into tax abatement agreements to disclose the following information about the
agreements:

= Brief descriptive information, such as the tax being abated, the authority
under which tax abatements are provided, eligibility criteria, the mechanism
by which taxes are abated, provisions for recapturing abated taxes, and the
types of commitments made by tax abatement recipients
The gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the period
Commitments made by a govenment, other than to abate taxes, as part of a
tax abatement agreement

Governments should organize those disclosures by major tax abatement program and may
disclose information for individual tax abatement agreements within those programs.

Tax abatement agreements of other governments should be organized by the government
that entered into the tax abatement agreement and the specific tax being abated.
Governments may disclose information for individual tax abatement agreements of other
governments within the specific tax being abated. For those tax abatement agreements,
a reporting government should disclose:

* The names of the governments that entered into the agreements
s  The specific taxes being abated
* The gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the period

The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods
beginning after December 15, 2015.

Management is evaluating the impact that these statements will have, if any, on the
Banlk's basic financial statements.
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2. CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS WITH OTHER BAMKS AND
COMMERCIAL PAPER, ARD SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER AGREEMENTS TO RESELL

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount and the corresponding depository bank
balances of cash and due from banks and interest-bearing deposits with other banks were
as follows:

2015
Carrying Depository
Amount Bank Balance
Cash and due from banks $ 6,826,075 S 7,796,299
Interest-bearing deposits 10,800,000 10,800,000
S 17,626,075 $ 18,596,299
2014
Carrying Depository
Amount Bank Balance
Cash and due from banks S 6,155,939 $ 8,288,724

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the total depository bank balance consisted of $17,252,775
and 54,061,657, respectively, which was insured or collateralized with securities held by
the Department of the Treasury of the Commonwealth and $1,343,524 and $4,227,067,
respectively, deposited with the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (“GDB"),
another component unit of the Commonwealth. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and
uncollateralized,

The Bank's investment policies allow management to purchase commercial paper. The
following table summarizes certain information about these purchases for the year ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014:;

2015 2014
Average amount outstanding during the year $ 4,583,000 S 1,444,238
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end $ 29,999,750 )
Weighted average Interest rate for the year 0.32% 0.41%
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The Bank's investment policies, as authorized by Act number 22 of July 24, 1985, Article
3, allow management to purchase securities under agreements to resell. The following
table summarizes certain information about these agreements:

Carrying amount at June 30

Average amount outstanding during the year

Maximum amount cutstanding at any month-end

Weighted average interest rate for the year

Weighted average interest rate at year-end

Weighted average maturity (years)

2015 2014
$ i $ 55,727,000
§ 29,428,000  $102,225,000
$ 64,150,000  $166,947,000
1,32% 1.17%
0% 1.25%
0% 0.06%

The Bank's investment policies establish the minimum amount of acceptable collateral.
The market prices of the collateral are revised monthly and the margin amount adjusted
accordingly, The aggregate market value of the securities underlying the agreements
outstanding at June 30, 2014 was $82,015,000, none at June 30, 2015,
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3.

INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Bank had the following investments:

June 30, 2015

Weighted
Average
Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value (Years)
Federal Home Loan Bank - MBS S 384,855 0.0
Federal Natlonal Mortgage Association - MBS - notes
payable program 150,000,000 See below
Municipal bonds 12,080,000 0.5
Municipal bonds - notes payable program 242,528,158 See below
Collateralized mortgage obligations {residential) 33,030,286 1.3
Collateralized mortgage obligations - notes payable
program {residential) 19,497,066 See below
External Investment pools 31,439,797 N/A
Equity investments 10,833,236 N/A
Total fair value "%499,793,398
June 30, 2014
Welghted
Average
Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value {Years)
Federal Home Loan Bank - MBS S 676,865 1.0
Federal Natlonal Mortgage Association - MBS - notes
payable program 150,000,000 See below
Municipal bonds 148,481,732 0.5
Municipal bonds - notes payable program 267,331,170 See below
Collateralized mortgage obligations (residential) 53,575,714 2.3
Collateralized mortgage obligations - notes payable
program (residential) 23,933,681 See below
External investment paols 16,186,412 N/A
Equity investments 11,122,636 N/A
Total fair value “$691,308,210
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Interest rate risk - In accordance with its investment policy, the Bank manages its
exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its
investment portfolio generally to less than three years.

Those investments related to the notes payable programs involve matched transactions
that generate a fixed spread of income to the Bank. These were directly approved by the
Bank's board of directors and are not subject to the maximum maturity policy. As of June
30, 2015 and 2014, the investments which serve as collateral to the notes payable
program have a welghted average maturity of 10.6 and 11.2 years, respectively.

In addition, investments in external investment pools and equity securities are not
subject to the maximum maturity policy since they do not have a maturity date. These
instruments are not sold on secondary markets and are not priced in any stock exchange,
and as such, its fair value depends on the performance of the involved enterprises. The
Inherent risk in these investments is managed through credit analysis, periodic reviews of
results of operations, and meetings with subject companies and investment pools
managers.

Credit risk - The Bank's investment policy limits long-term investment in corporate debt
to the top three ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations,
and short-term investments in corporate debt to the top two ratings issued by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations.

As of June 30, 2015, the Bank’s investments in collateralized mortgage obligations were
rated AA+ or A+ by Standard & Poor’s, aa or A- by Moody’s Investor Service and AAA or
Baal by Fitch Ratings; the Bank's investment in Federal National Mortgage Association
and Federal Home Loan Bank were rated AA+ by Standard & Poor's, Aza by Moody's
Investor Service and AA+ by Fitch Ratings; and the Bank's investment in municipal bonds
were rated AAA, AA or CCC- by Standard & Poor's, Aaa, Aal, A2, Bal, Caa2 or Ca2 by
Moody's Investor Service and AAA, AA+, A- or CC by Fitch Ratings.

As of June 30, 2014, the Bank's investments in collateralized mortgage obligations were
rated AAA or AA+ by Standard & Poor's, Aaa, A3, Baal or Caal by Moody's Investor
Service and AAA or D by Fitch Ratings; the Bank’s investment in Federal National
Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Bank were rated AA+ by Standard & Poor's,
Aaa by Moody's Investor Service and AAA by Fitch Ratings; and the Bank’s investment in
municipat bonds were rated AAA, AA-, A+, BB+ or BB by Standard & Poor's and Aaa, Aat,
Aal, A1, A2, Baa3, Baz, B1, B2 or B3 by Moody’s Investor Service.
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Credit Risk
Rating®
Invastment Type AAA Lo BRB BitaD NR Total
Federat Home Loan Bank - MBS 1 384,853 H . S . § 384,058
Federa! Hational Mortgage Assoclation - MBS - notes
payable program 150,000,000 . - 150,000,000
Munidpat bonds + 12,080,000 - 12,080,000
Municipal bonds - noles payable program 242,518,158 . . 242,528,158
Collataratized mortgage cbifgations (residenttal} 11,010,284 - . 13,030,286
Collateraltzed mortgage obligations - notes payabls
program (residentlal) 19,497,066 . 19,497,066
External investment pools - * 1,409,797 1,439,797
Equity Investments . . 10,813,236 10,233,134
Total fair vakue § 445,440,355 S 12,080,000 $ 42,171,033 § 499,791,191

“ Rating obtained from Standard & Poer's or equivalent rating by Moody's Investors Service or Fitch Ratings.

The Bank, through EDBCI, also invests in venture capital through external investment
pools and through direct investment in equity securities. The Bank's investments in
external investment pools and equity securities are not rated by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. The related credit risk is measured through credit analysis,
periodic reviews of results of operations, and meetings with subject companies’
management. In addition, a reserve for possible losses in venture capital investments is
recorded as a measure of providing a fair value in the financial statements. As of June
30, 2015 and 2014, the venture capital balances comprised the following:

2015 2014
External investment pools S 31,439,797 $ 36,186,412
Equity investments 15,704,000 15,754,000
47,143,797 51,940,412
Allowance for losses in venture capital investments (4,870,764) (4,631,364)
Fair value of venture capital investments § 42,273,013 $ 47,309,048

The investment strategy of the external investment pools is to seek companies in or
outside Puerto Rico that require capital growth or seed capital; although the investment
recipients must have operations in Puerto Rico. The current investments on external
equity investment pools are on different investment stages of their life cycle. Some of
the funds continue evaluating new investment alternatives and others are in its seli-off
stage.
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In accordance with the partnership agreements for each of the external investment
pools, the Bank's investments can only be redeemed upon distribution from funds
managers; usually in the form of a sale of its holdings or dividends distributed. The assets
held by the funds in sell-off stage should be liquidated within the next three years;
whereas the assets held by investment stage funds will take from seven to ten years for
liquidation, as expected per its respective partnership agreements. As of June 30, 2015,
the Bank does not intend to sell or redeem investments in any external investment pool
for an amount different to that presented in the financial statements.

Custodial credit risk deposits - Custadial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty to the transaction, the Bank may not be able to
recaver the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, securities investments were registered In
the name of the Bank and were held in the possession of the Bank’s custodian institution.

The Bank was exposed to the following custodial credit risk for investments held at June
30, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Uninsured 2nd registered, with securities held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Bank’s name 457,520,365 $643,999,162
Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the Bank 42,273,033 47,309,048
Total 5499,793,398 5691,308,210

Concentration of credit risk - The Bank places no limit on the amount it may invest in any
one issuer as a percentage of the investment portfolio. As of June 30, 2015, more than 5%
of the Bank's investments are in Municipal Bonds (51%), Federal National Mortgage
Association CMO’s (31.5%) and other collateralized mortgage obligations (9.1%). As of
June 30, 2014, more than 5% of the Bank’s investments are in Municipal Bonds (60.2%)
and Federal National Mortgage Association CMO’s (23.2%).

Proceeds from sales, principal payments, and maturities of investments, including equity
investments and gross realized gains or losses, for the years ended June 30, 2015 and
2014 are as follows:

2015 2014
Proceeds from sales $ 1,308,175 § 15,175,087
Proceeds from principal payments and maturities $ 190,492,542 5 331,100,316
Gross gains ] - § 3,273,354
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4, LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
The balance of current and noncurrent loans consists of loans originated by the Bank and
amounts paid under the loan guarantee program. During the years ended June 30, 2015
and 2014, the Bank has made no payments under the loan guarantee program.

Loans distribution among industry sectors as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014

Agricultural S 33,933,709 S 32,079,461
Commercial 76,412,666 84,225,635
Services 144,190,593 157,473,817
Manufacturing 38,930,154 40,587,740
Tourism 32,287,433 30,241,401

Total loans 325,754,555 344,608,054
Allowance for lpan losses (19,303,658) (34,021,543}

S 306,450,897 $ 310,586,511

The Bank has defined impaired loans as all loans with interest and/or principal past due
90 days or more and other loans for which, based on current information, it is probable
that the debtor witl be unable to pay according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. The Bank generally measures impairment based upon the present value of a
loan’s expected future cash flows, except where foreclosure or liquidation is probable or
when the primary source of repayment is provided by collateral. In these circumstances,
impairment is measured based upon the fair value of the collateral less estimated selling
and disposal costs. The present value of a loan's expected future cash flows is calculated
using the loan’s effective interest rate based on the original contractual terms.

Cash payments recelved on impaired loans are recorded in accordance with the
contractual terms of the loan. The principal portion of the payments is used to reduce
the principal balance of the loan; the interest portion is recognized as interest income.
When management belfeves that collectability of principal is doubtful, the interest
portion may be applied to principal.
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At June 30, 2015 and 2014, loan delinquency by industry sector was a follows:

2015
Outstanding
0 - 29 Days 30 - 59 Days 60 - 89 Days 90+ Days Balance
Agricutturat S 25925374 § 671,198 § 122,454 § 7,214,683 § 33,933,709
Commercial 64,645,705 1,865,293 2,816,791 7,084,877 76,412,666
Services 123,903,617 3,273,376 1,638,503 15,374,697 144,190,593
Manufacturing 33,264,493 111,215 - 5,554,446 38,930,154
Tourfsm 27,925,658 5 . 4,361,775 32,287,433
Total § 275,664,847 S 5921082 § 4,578,148 S 39,590,478 § 325,754,555
2014
Outstanding
0 - 29 Days 30 - 59 Days 60 - 89 Days 90+ Days Balance
Agricultural S 15,418,065 § 763,007 § 937,719 S5 11,560,600 & 32,079,461
Commerclal 64,315,515 4,877,180 384,144 14,628,796 84,225,635
Services 138,274,198 4,364,710 1,230,549 13,604,360 157,473,847
Manufacturing 32,796,620 411,772 16,604 7,362,744 40,587,740
Tourlsm 16,367,347 - - 3,874,054 30,241,401
Total S 280,191,745 5 10,416,739 § 1,569,016 §5 51,430,554 § 344,608,059

The following s a summary of information on loans considered to be impaired in
accordance with ASC subtopic 310-35-35 Receivables, previously, FASB Statement No.
114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 and
the related interest income for the years then ended:

2015 2014
Recorded investment in impaired loans not requiring an
allowance for loan losses $ 82,622,000 $ 54,470,000
Recorded investment in impaired loans requiring an
allowance for loan losses 30,603,000 42,285,000
Total recorded investment in impaired loans $113,225,000 $ 96,755,000
Related valuation allowance $ 7,332,000 $ 13,637,000
Average recorded investment in impaired loans $ 98,900,000 $ 86,500,000
Interest fncome recognized $ 2,011,000 $ 1,007,000

41

BDQ, Puetto Rico, PSC, & Puerto Rico Professional Services Corporation, and BDO USWI, LLC, a United States Yirgin Istand's limiled liability Company, are
members of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by gusrantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.,

800 is the bmla name for the BOO network and for each of the B0O Member,



|IBDO

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued
{(cash basis loans), due to delinquency over 89 days and/or due to restructurings,
amounted to $120,409,716 (539,575,708 over 89 days and $80,834,008 restructured loans)
and $131,420,175 ($51,371,855 over 89 days and $80,048,320 restructured loans),
respectively. The additional interest income that would have been recorded if these
loans had performed in accordance with their original terms is estimated at
approximately $9,460,000 and $9,810,000 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The balance of nonaccrual loans by industry sector at June 30, 2015 and 2014, were as

follows:
2015 2014

Agricultural S 14,337,361 5 20,201,902
Commercial 34,325,220 33,446,678
Services 38,513,436 45,644,723
Manufacturing 23,680,921 19,043,361
Tourism 9,552,778 13,083,511

Total S 120,409,716 $ 131,420,175

The balance of loans classified as troubled debt restructured by industry sector and the
related effect in the allowance for loan losses at June 30, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015 2014
Principal Alowance Principal Allowance
Agricultural S 14567816 & 634599 5§ 21,548,733 S 2,202,754
Commerdlal 24,451,547 1,220,127 21,264,379 5,889,212
Services 31,154,552 3,793,742 35,769,369 4,847,679
Manufacturing 10,025,425 112,912 8,019,210 1,064,635
Tourlsm 9,537,027 564,246 10,458,808 333,52
Total S 89736367 § 6325626 § 97,060,499  § 14,337,841
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The following tables present the troubled debt restructuring modified during the years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

201% 2014
Premodification  Postmodification  Premodification Postmodification
Outstanding recorded Investment § 20,005,396 § 20,004,854 § 26,371,593 S 26,396,303
Number of contracts 22 2 100 100
Welghted average rate 7.60% 7.61% 5.87% 5.56%
Weighted average term (months) H 81 " 85

Of the total troubled debt restructurings during 2015 and 2014, 1 contract with a balance
at June 30, 2015 of 5118,558 and 17 contracts with a balance at June 30, 2014 of
93,682,000, defaulted after their modifications were processed.

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, commitments to extend credit on troubled debt restructured
loans amounted to $1,433,000 and $403,000, respectively.

Changes in the total allowance for loan losses for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
were as follows:

2015 2014
BALANCE, beginning of year S 34,021,543 S 35,734,173
Provision charged to operations 2,200,000 10,960,000
Loans charged off as uncollectible (19,229,806) (14,941,246)
Recoverles 2,311,921 2,268,616
BALANCE, end of year S 19,303,658 S 34,021,543
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The following table presents the changes and the balance in the allowance for loan losses
and the recorded investment in gross loans by industry sector and based on impairment
method for the year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014;

2015
Agrictittural Commerclal Serviens Manufacturing Tourtsm Tetal

Allowance for lban losses;

Begimning balance S LSMMY 5 10265474 5 15d404M5 § 158,92 § 1890 5 3402150
Provision charged

to operations 119,919 {507,151 ML 1,100,196 74,679 2,200,000
Loans charged-off

25 uncoliectible 1,769,230 (3,738,761) (6,277,504) (4,678,975) {365,245 (19,229,806}
Recoveries 115,745 1,063,528 35,703 14,12 n,0m 2,151
Ending balanca § 1,401,513 § 4,483,088 5 WO0HBI § L0454 5 1,190 § 19,000,658
Ending allowance

attributable to icans:

Individually evatuated for

Impairment §  4¥500 § 47ISTSL OS5 31BN S5 BS,MT S 40098 § 7,131,652
Collectively evamted for

imgairment 964,013 1,147,334 4,191,508 768,577 1,158,572 11,972,006

Ending allovance § 401513 § 4,483,088 § WML § 04,904 5 LISA0 5 19,103,658

Loars:

Inctvidually evatuated for

{mpzirment § 18595311 § 30,086,520 5 1096554 5 DTN 5 BH469 5 13,224,775
Cotlectively evaluated

for impalrment 15,338,370 45,126,146 11,134,009 15,638,400 1,072,014 12,529,700

Total loan balance § 900,709 § T A1068  § 1HIW,393 § 8,901 § 1387431 § 315,754,555

2014
Agricultugal Commercial Services Manufacturing Tourlsm Total

AMovance for loan bosses:

Begimning balance § 300,07 5 12,005,505 § 15746072 5 1,537,066 5 3084280 5§ 157,17
Provision charged

to operations 810,714 4,218,979 3,673,024 1,368,295 858,948 10,960,000
Loans charged-off

as uncollectible {416,801) (5,629,048 “.731,192) {1,033,094) (2,131,909 {14,541,244)
Recoveries 459,079 340,008 716,211 726,567 6,05t 2,268,616
Ending balance S 30M00 S 10085474 § 15,404,115 § 1,398,911 § 1,828,971 § 34,001,540
Ending alvance

attributable to loans:

indivickialy evaluated for

impairment § L0MOH4 S 5S35 4e3ma 5 111083 S 2002 5 1,836,924
Collactively evaluated for

Impaiment 50,005 4200251 10,765,311 1,488,404 1,598,151 10,384,619

Ending allovwence S 994,049 5 10265474 5§ 15404013 5 1,398,932 § 88,971 5 34,000,543

Loans:

Individually evaluated for

Impalrment § 19812499 5 TN 5 961,885 5 8510341 5 SO 5 96,7559
Collectively evaluated

for impaiment 12,266,962 54,887,874 127,861,132 31,667,399 1,169,19 47,852,662

Total loan balance & IL0I9461 & BI25,635 5 ST 7 5 40,507,740 § 30,041,401 § 4,508,004
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

2015
Beginning Reductions / Ending
Balance Additions Reclassifications Balance
Land $ 2,735,000 § - L1 . 5 2,735,000
Bullding and Improvements 11,503,087 85,419 - 11,589,506
Furniture and equipment 5,024,804 213,813 (116,759) 5,121,878
Total cost 19,282,891 300,252 {116,759) 19,446,384
Less acrumulated depreciation
and amortization:
Building and impravements {5,616,517) (302,890) - (5,919,407}
Furniture and equipment (4,832,956) {84,477) 92,268 {4,825, 165)
Total accumulated depreciation
depreciation and amortlzation {10,449,473) {387,367 92,268 {10,744,572)
Capltai assets, net s 8,813,418 S (87,115) § (24,491) § 8,701,842
2014
Beginning Reductions / Ending
Balance Additions Reclassifications Balance
Land S 3,735,000 S . 3 . §$ 2,735,000
Buflding and improvements 11,340,844 162,241 . 11,503,087
Furniture and equipment 4,946,471 121,038 42,705y . 5,024,805
Total cost 19,022,315 283,282 (42,705} 19,262,892
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization:
Building and improvements (5,324,544) (291,973) B {5,616,517)
Fuen!ture and equipment (4,805,750} (69,912) 42,705 (4,832,957)
Total accumulated depreclation
depreciation and amortization (10,130,274} (361,885) 42,705 {10,449,474)
Capltal assets, net $ 8801 S (78,603) § . $  B,B13,418

The Bank's principal premises are partially rented to various lessees under lease terms
expiring at various future dates. Minimum future rentals to be received for the next two
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2017 are approximately $375,000 and $148,000,
respectively,

Rent revenue amounting to approximately $372,000 and $304,000 was recorded as other
income in the accompanying 2015 and 2014 statements of revenue, expenses, and
changes in net position, respectively.
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6. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 consist of the following:

2015 2014

Other real estate owned, net of atlowance for losses of

$3,162,92B fn 2015 and $5,935,941 in 2014 S 4,847,033 S 6,991,835
Deferred Issuance costs 99,064 108,072
Accounts receivable from other Commonwealth

component units 84,266 775,826
Other 46,204 448,975

Total S 5,076,567 S 8,344,709

7. TIME DEPOSITS

Time deposits of 212,137,906 and $411,683,945 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
consist of deposits with fixed maturity dates (not exceeding 12 months) received from
other governmental institutions, commercial banks, or other financial institutions.
Governmental time deposits {Commonwealth and its component units) are exempt by law
from the collateral requirement applicable to commercial financial institutions, which are
depositors of public funds. Governmental time deposits at June 30, 2015 and 2014
amounted to approximately $200,830,000 and $390,330,000, respectively.

Time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more amounted to approximately
$211,822,000 and $411,540,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

8. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE
The Bank's investment policles, as authorized by Act number 22 of July 24, 1985, Article

3, allow management to sell securities under agreements to repurchase. The following
table summarizes certain information on securities sold under agreements to repurchase:

2015 2014
Carrying amount at June 30 $ 28,756,000 S 45,690,000
Average amount outstanding during the year $ 35,330,000 $ 59,824,000
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end $ 40,800,000 § 75,750,000
Weighted average {nterest rate for the year 0.44% 1.07%
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 0.57% 0.35%
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Securities sold under agreements to repurchase represent borrowings with maturities
ranging from 14 to 71 days at June 30, 2015 and from 10 to 71 days at June 30, 2014.

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, securities sold under agreements to repurchase were
collateralized with mortgage-backed securities, other governmental agencies securities,
and other investments with a market value of 531,144,000 and $50,099,000, respectively.

The activity for securities sotd under agreements to repurchase during 2015 and 2014 was
as follows:

2015

Amounts Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Securities sold under
agreement to repurchase 5 45,690,000 § 182,241,000 5 (199,175,000) § 20,756,000 § 128,756,000
2014
Amounts Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additlons Reductions Balance Ona Year
Securitles sold under
agresment ta repurchase § 76,200,000 § 248,690,000 § (279,200,000) § 45,690,000 & 45,690,000

9. PROMISSORY NOTES AND OTHER NOTE PAYABLE

Promissory notes and other nate payable at June 30, 2015 and 2014 are summarized as

follows:
2015 2014
Promissory notes $ 411,997,916 $ 441,214,688
Other note payable 8,393,996 8,922,920
Total $ 420,391,912 $ 450,137,608

On May 22, 2003, the Bank was authorized to issue up to $300 million in collateralized
promissory notes. During the fiscal year 2005, the authorized amount was increased up to
$500 million. During fiscal year 2008, the Bank, through its subsidiary EDBCH, was
authorized to fssue an additional $275 million in collateralized promissory notes. The
proceeds received by the Bank from the sale of these notes shall be invested in
obligations that qualify as permitted investments under applicable laws and the
investment guidelines adopted by the Bank. Such notes have maturities not exceeding 20
years. These notes contain certain put options held by the Bank and by the creditor. The
put options of the Bank grant the Bank the exercisable right, at the Bank's sole
discretion, to require the noteholder to purchase, on established exercise dates, the
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collateral of this note at a price equal to the amortized cost of the promissory notes, as
defined. The put option held by the noteholders permits them, on the same established
dates of the Bank’s put option, to require the Bank to redeem the promissory notes at
their outstanding amortized cost. The mirror put options held by the Bank are considered
in accounting for the fair value of the underlying investments. As a result, no separate
asset or obligation is recorded related to the put options.

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the aggregate principal balance of promissory notes
outstanding under these programs amounted to 5412 million and 5441 million,
respectively. These notes pay interest semiannually, bear interest rates at June 30, 2015
ranging from 1.83% to 7.23%, and mature at various dates through September 27, 2032,
These promissory notes are collateralized with investment securities with an aggregate
fair value of $453,242,000, excluding the value of their corresponding put options.

The other note payable is due to the Government Development Bark of Puerto Rico
(“GDB"} (collateralized by a real estate mortgage) bears interest at the rate of 6% per
annum, pays interest semiannually in June and December, and principal is paid each
June. The note matures on June 1, 2026 and provides for annual payments of $1,064,300
including interest.

Promissory notes and other note payable activity for the years ended June 30, 2015 and
2014 was as follows:

BDO 13 the brand name for the BDO network and fur each of the 800 Member.

2015
Due
Beginning Ending within
balance Additions Reductions balance one year
Promissory notes S #1,214688 § S AULTIY 5 41,976 S 6,676,666
Other note payable 8,922,920 {528,924} 8,393,996 560,660
Total promissory
notes and other
note payable S 450,137,008 § S [29,745696) 5 420091,%12 § 7,.297,32%
2014
Due
Beginning Ending within
balance Additions Reductions balance one year
Pramissory notes S F03,047620 & § (261,832,092} & 441,214,688 § -
Other note payabie 9,421,905 {498,985} 8,922,920 528,924
Total promissory
notes and other
note payable § TZ,469525 & S RELINMT) 5 450,137,808 5§ 528,9M4
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The maturities and interest payments of the promissory notes and the note payable for
each of the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows:

Principal Interest
Years ending June 30;
2016 S 7,237,326 S 19,517,860
2017 394,299 19,445,045
2018 629,957 19,409,209
2019 667,755 19,371,223
2020 707,820 19,330,957
2021 - 2025 259,550,699 51,579,687
2026 - 2030 1,004,056 23,305,223
2031 - 2035 150,000,000 10,449,583
Total S 420,391,912 $ 182,408,787
10. OTHER LVABILITIES
The activity for the other noncurrent liabilities during 2015 and 2014 was as follows:
2015
Beginning Ending
Balance Provision Reductions Balance
Compensated absences S 2,049,589 H] 330,000 ] {566,828) S 1,812,761
Legal claims 667,722 - (45,333) 622,389
Reserve for loan guarantees 3,624,170 - (6,839) 3,617,331
Total S 6341481 S 330,000 § (619,000) S 6,052,481
2014
Beginning Ending
Balance Provision Reductions Balance
Compensated absences S 013242 8 20,000 (283,623) S 2,049,589
Legal claims 667,722 . - 667,722
Reserve for loan guarantees 3,641,570 . (17,800) 3,624,170
Total S 6322904 § 320,000 § . (301,423) S 6,341,481
49

B0O, Puerto Rico, PSC, a Purrta Rico Professional Services Corporation, and BDO WSV LLC, a United States Virgin island's Umited tabitity Company, are
members of BDO International Limiled, a UK company timited by g tee, and form part of the Internattonat BOO netwerk of independent membar firms.

80O Is the brand name for Lhe BOQO network and for each of the B00 Member.



|IBDO

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

11. NET POSITION

The Bank’s net position invested In capital assets and restricted as of June 30, 2015 and

2014 are composed of the following:

2015 2014
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt:
Capital assets § 19,446,384 S 19,262,892
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (10,744,572) {10,449,474)
Related GDB note payable (8,393,996) (8,922,920}
Total ] 307,816 ] (109,502)
2015 2014
Restricted for special loan programs:
Economlic Development Administration S 1,827,649 $ 3,587,156
Day Care Centers Loan Fund 4,762,532 4,660,894
State Small Business Credit Initiative 15,247,264 9,828,706
Total S 23,837,445 S 18,076,756

The Bank is a recipient of two grants from the Economic Development Administration
Directive System {"EDA"), subscribed by the U.S. Department of Commerce to operate a
program under a Revolving Loan Fund directed to assist businesses that suffered physical
or economic damage due to the effects of Hurricane Hugo, and to advance the economic
development of Puerto Rico. The Bank matched EDA's award pursuant to the terms of the
grant agreements. The funds received from the collection of principal and interest of
loans granted under the program are deposited in the fund to be used to disburse new
qualified loans. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the outstanding principal of loans granted
under the terms of EDA Revolving Loan Fund amounted to $3,721,459 and $3,126,828,
respectively, and are included in loans, net in the accompanying statements of net
position. The grants are routinely subject to financial and compliance audits in
accordance with the provisions of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133 or to compliance audits by EDA. The latter has the authority to determine liabilities
as well as to limit, suspend, or terminate the federal assistance.

On October 6, 1989, a revolving loan fund grant that was administrated by GDB was
transferred to the Bank for administration under the same terms as when the program
was established by GDB. At the time, such fund had a total contribution of $1,250,000
(51,000,000 from EDA and $250,000 from GDB) and a portfolic consisting of 15 loans with
an aggregate outstanding principal balance of $504,299. The fund was pooled into the
fund previously administered by the Bank when the Bank reimbursed $250,000 to GDB for
their original contribution to such fund. As a result, the Bank’s contribution to the fund
equals 25% of EDA’s contribution to the fund.

50

BDO, Puerto Rica, PSC, & Puerto Rico Professional Services Corporation, and BDO USWI, LLC, a United States Virgin istand’s limited abllity Company, are
members of BDO International Limited, a UK company timited by guarantee, and form part of the intemational BDO network of independent member fems

BDO is the brand namse for the BDO network and for each af the BOO Member,



|IBDO

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

The Commonwealth approved Law No. 212 of August 29, 2000, as amended, which
creates the Day Care Centers Loan Fund, for the purpose of financing the development of
day care centers for children, multiple activity centers for elderly persons, and long-term
care institutions. The Bank is responsible for the administration of the fund. At June 30,
2015 and 2014, the outstanding principal of loans granted under the terms of the Day
Care Centers Loan Fund amounted to $2,225,304 and 52,499,464, respectively, and are
included in loans, net in the accompanying statements of net position.

In September 2011, the Bank was approved an allocation of $14.5 million from the U.S.
Department of the Treasury (“Treasury") under the State Small Business Credit Initiative
Act of 2010, Title 3 of the Small Business Jobs Act of 2010 (“SSBCI"), by which the United
States Congress appropriated funds to Treasury to be allocated and disbursed to States
and Territories that have created programs to increase the amount of capital made
available by private \enders to small businesses. To accomplish this Puerto Rico will use
$12.5 million of its allocated SSBCI funds to support the existing Loan Participation
Program and 52 million to support the existing Venture Capital Program. As of June 30,
2015 the Bank has received $14.5 million of the total allocation, which was recorded as a
capital contribution, and has committed $13.5 million under the Loan Participation
Program and $1 million under the Venture Capital Program.

Net position restricted for the special loans programs as of June 30, 2015 and 2014
consist of the following:

2015 2014

Cash and due from banks S B,B57,038 § 7,457,754
Venture capital investment 1,000,000 1,000,000
Loans and interest receivable, net of altowance for loan

losses of $530,605 and $943,196 in 2015 and 2014,

respectively 14,124,977 9,604,267
Other assets 677,270 173,962

Total restricted assets 24,659,285 18,235,983
Accounts payable and other liabilities 821,840 159,227

Total restricted net assets $ 23,837,445 5 18,076,756

12, INTERAGENCY AGREEMENTS

The Bank has entered into interagency agreements with various government agencies.
Such agreements provide for the deposit of funds in the Bank amounting in the aggregate
to approximately $2.8 million to be used for loan programs to benefit socially and
economically disadvantaged families and unemployed persons. Loans are granted based
on the requirements established by such governmental agencies and the Bank is
responsible for the administration of the loan portfolio. During the fiscal year ended June
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30, 2015, these fund programs had made no payments to the Bank for loans guaranteed;
therefore, these loans are not included in the accompanying statements of net position.

The Bank entered into an interagency agreement with the Economic Development and
Commerce Department (a governmental unit of the Commonwealth). Such agreement
provides for the transfer of the funds from the previously created Hurricane Georges
Guarantee Loan Fund and the Education Loan Program Guarantee Fund to a new loan
fund program. The new loan fund program grants direct loans and guarantees to small-
and medium-sized entrepreneurs in the economic sectors of manufacturing, services, and
commerce. Guarantee clalms under Hurricane Georges Guarantee Loan Fund and
Education Loan Program Guarantee Fund may be paid by the new fund. At June 30, 2015
and 2014, the outstanding principal of loans granted under all the Economic Development
and Commerce Department loans and loan guarantee programs amounted to $2,582,780
and 93,653,198, respectively, of which $2,544,281 and $3,059,171, respectively, are
included in loans, net in the accompanying statements of net position, while the
remaining balance had been paid to the Bank by the new fund.

The Bank entered into an interagency agreement with the Tourism Company of Puerto
Rico (a component unit of the Commonwealth) to create the Loan and Guarantee Tourism
Fund. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the outstanding principat of loans granted under this
fund amounted to 56,199,906 and 56,684,778, respectively, and are included in loans,
net in the accompanying statements of net position.

On August 17, 2001, the Commonwealth approved Law No. 117, which creates the
Agricultural Guarantee Loan Fund to secure loans granted by the Bank and commercial
banks to farmers and agricultural entities. This fund will be financed through annual
appropriations to be provided by the Commonwealth up to $100 million during a four-year
period. The Bank has entered into an alliance with the Commonwealth’s Department of
Agriculture (the Department) for the administration of this fund, which among other
things, requires that the Department establish the operational procedures of the Fund,
while the Bank will administer the fund. At June 30, 2008, the fund had received $10
million related to the initial appropriation, which was deposited in the Bank. At June 30,
2015 and 2014, the outstanding principal of all loans granted under the Agricultural
Guarantee Loan Fund program amounted to $4,765,498 and $7,461,178, respectively, of
which $4,733,322 and $5,128,560, respectively, are included in loans, net in the
accompanying statements of net position, while the remaining balance had been paid to
the Bank by the fund.

The Bank entered into an interagency agreement with the Department of Agriculture (a
governmental unit of the Commonwealth) and the Fund for the Comprehensive
Development of the Agriculture, a component unit of the Puerto Rico Land Authority (a
component unit of the Commonwealth), to create the Guarantee Loan Program - “La
Llave para tu Agro-empresa.” At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the outstanding principal of
loans granted under the program amounted to $224,639 and $631,766, respectively, of
which $224,639 and $258,349, respectively, are included in loans, net in the
accompanying statements of net position, while the remaining balance had been paid to
the Bank by the fund.
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13,

The financial statements of these funds are audited by other independent auditors whose
reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2014, dated April 30, 2015, express an
unqualified opinion. Audit of these funds for the year ended June 30, 2015 has not been
completed as of issuance date of the Bank's basic financial statements. These funds are
not included within the Bank's basic financial statements.

The Bank and the governmental agencies participating in the interagency agreements
described above are jointly liable for any litigation that may arise in connection with the
administration of such loan programs. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, there was no pending
or threatened litigation under such programs.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

At June 30, 2015, the Bank is a defendant in various lawsuits arising from the ordinary
course of business. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion
that the uttimate liability, if any, resulting from such lawsuits would not be material in
relation to the Bank’s financial position and results of operations.

Because of the uncertaintles inherent in the evaluation of pending or threatened
litigation, the Bank's ultimate liability under such claims may be significantly different
from management's current estimate.

Loan Guarantee Program

On March 9, 2009, the Commonwealth approved Law No, 9, which creates the Loan
Guarantees Program for the Small and Medium Businesses. Under the program, the GDB, a
component unit of the Commonwealth, assigned $180 million to the Bank to secure loans
granted by commercial banks and other financial institutions ranging from $5,000 to
$250,000 and in accordance with the criteria established by the law and the Bank’s
policies. The purpose of this program is to facilitate credit to enterprises affected by lack
of liquidity or lack of sufficient collateral to back up their loans. At June 30, 2015 and
2014, the outstanding guaranteed principal of loans granted under the program amounted
to $3,050,000.

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, total outstanding loan guarantees, including guarantees under
the new program mentioned above, amounted to approximately $3,186,000 and
$3,201,000, respectively. The Bank has recorded a reserve for loan guarantees amounting
to approximately $1,915,000 and $1,922,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
which is included in other current liabilities in the accompanying statements of net
position. During 2011, the Bank received $10 million from the GDB to cover any losses
that may arise from the operation of the Loan Guarantees Program described above. This
amount was recorded in the reserve for loan guarantees under noncurrent other liabilities
in the accompanying financial statements. See Note 19 on retated-party transactions.
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From the reserve for loan guarantees, which as of June 30, 2015 has a balance of
$3,617,000, the Bank reassigned during 2011 $5 million for disbursements of loans under
the “Desarrollo para el Pueblo” program and $2 million for disbursements of loans under
the “Vieques y Culebra” program. Up to June 30, 2015, $5.5 million have been disbursed
for the two programs, leaving $1.5 million in the reserve for this purpase. In addition,
the reserve for loan guarantees includes $1.9 million to cover the $3.1 million in
guarantees outstanding as of June 30, 2015. See also Note 19,

Other Risks

The Bank is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, casualty, errors, and
omissions and other losses for which the Bank carries commercial insurance. Settled
claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Also,
the Bank obtains workers' compensation coverage from another component unit of the
Commonwealth.

SIGNIFICANT GROUP CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT AND MARKET RISK

The Bank’s business actlvities are with customers located in Puerto Rico. The Bank's loan
transactions are all directed toward small- and medium-size businesses in all sectors of
Puerto Rico’s economy. The collateral held on the Bank's loans varies, but usually
includes chattel and real estate mortgages.

RETIREMENT PLANS
Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its
Instrumentalities {“ERS") created pursuant to Act No. 447 of 1951, as amended, is a cost
sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored by and reported as a
component unit of the Commonwealth. All regular employees of the Bank hired before
January 1, 2000 and under 55 years of age at the date of employment became members
of the ERS as a condition to their employment. No benefits are payable if the participant
recelves a refund of their accumulated contributions.

The System provides retirement, death, and disability benefits pursuant to legislation
enacted by the Commonwealth’s legislature. Disability benefits are available to members
for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. However, a member must have at
least 10 years of service to receive non-occupational disability benefits. Retirement
benefits depend upon age at retirement and number of years of creditable service.
Benefits vest after 10 years of plan participation.
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Defined Contribution Plan

The Legislature of the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 305 of 2000, which amends Act
No. 447, to establish, among other things, a new defined benefit contribution savings
plan program (System 2000).

System 2000 became effective on January 1, 2000, Employees participating in the System
as of December 31, 1999 elected either to stay in the defined benefit plan or to transfer
to System 2000. New reguiar employees of the government on or after January 1, 2000
became members of System 2000.

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan.
Under this new plan, there is a pool of pension assets, which is invested by the System,
together with those of the System. Benefits at retirement age will not be guaranteed by
the Commonwealth.

New Defined Contribution Hybrid Program

In April 2013, the Legislature of the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 3, which amends
Acts No. 447 of 1951 and 305 of 2000, to establish, among other things, the creation of a
new defined contribution hybrid program and amend the terms and conditions of the
benefits structure granted to active participants and pensioners under the previously
established benefit structures administered by the ERS.

The Hybrid Program became effective on July 1, 2013. Employees participating in the
System as of June 30, 2014 retained their rights to receive the benefits earned under the
previous program based on the accumulated salaries and years of service up to June 30,
2014. All employees of the government on or after July 1, 2013 became members of the
Hybrid Program.

The Hybrid Program is a defined contribution ptan. Under this new plan, there is a pool of
pension assets, which is invested by the System, together with those of the System.
Benefits at retirement age will not be guaranteed by the Commonwealth. The annuity
will be based on the employees’ contribution (with a minimum of 10% of the employees’
salary and no maximum amount, limited by annual increments of up to 0.5% of the
monthly gross salary), which will be invested in one of three investment options.

Penslon benefits are defined as of June 30, 2013 based on each the member status.
Members who entered the ERS before April 1, 1990 and who have attained 58 years of age
and at least 10 years of creditable service, or members who have attained 55 years of age
and at least 25 years of creditable service, are entitled to a deferred pension plus the
benefits of the new defined contribution hybrid program annuity. Members who have
attained 57 years and at least 10 years of creditable service will be eligible for benefits
once they have 59 years. Members who have attained 56 years and at least 10 years of
creditable service will be eligible for benefits once they have 60 years. Members who
have not attained 56 years and have completed at least 10 years of creditable service will
be eligible for benefits once they have 61 years.
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Members entering the ERS on or after April 1, 1990 but before December 31, 1999 and
who have attained 65 years are entitled to a deferred pension plus the benefits of the
new defined contribution hybrid program annuity.

Members entering the ERS after January 1, 2000 and who have attained 59 years as of
June 30, 2013 are entitled defined contribution program annuity. Members who have
attained 58 years as of June 30, 2013 are entitled defined contribution program annuity
once they have attained 62 years. Members who have attained 57 years as of June 30,
2013 are entitled defined contribution pragram annuity once they have attained 63 years.
Members who have attalned 56 years as of June 30, 2013 are entitled defined
contribution program annuity once they have attained 64 years. Members who have
attained 55 years or less as of June 30, 2013 are entitled defined contribution program
annulty once they have attained 65 years.

The Bank’s required contribution is 13.275% of the employees' salary. Contribution rates
are established commonwealth wide for all participating governmental units. Accordingly,
the actuarial information and related disclosures attributable to the Bank’s employees
are not determinable.

Total employee contributions during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 to the
above plans amounted to approximately $559,000 and $556,000, respectively. Total
payroll covered for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 was approximately
$5,610,000 and $5,610,000, respectively,

The Bank's contributions during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 to the above
plans amounted to $745,000 and 5689,000, respectively, which represented 100% of
required contributions.

Additional information on the System will be provided in its financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2015. That report may be obtained by writing to Employees’
Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its Instrumentalities, P.O. Box 42003, San
Juan, PR 00940-2003,

16.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK

In the normal course of business, the Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-
balance-sheet risk to meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit and to purchase investment and mortgage-backed
securities, financial guarantees, and interest rate exchange agreements. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in
excess of amounts recognized in the accompanying statements of net position. These off-
balance-sheet risks are managed and monitored in manners similar to those used for on-
balance-sheet risks. The Bank’s exposures to credit losses for lending commitments are
represented by the contractual amount of such transactions. The notional amounts for
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other off-balance-sheet risks express the dollar volume of the transactions, but the credit
risk might be lower.

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the off-balance-sheet risks consisted of the following:

2015 2014
Financial instruments whose credit is represented by
contractual amounts:
Financial guarantees S 3,186 5 3,201
Commitments to extend credit ] 23,619 S 13,9315
Commitments to invest in venture capital $ 5,861 S 7,004

Financial guarantees written are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are
primarily issued to support private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved in
issulng financial guarantees is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan
facilities to customers.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is
no viclation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.
Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the
total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements, The
Bank evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained upon extension of credit is based on management's credit evaluation
of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include property, plant, and
equipment, and income-producing commercial properties.

OTHER NON-ENTEREST INCOME

Other non-interest income for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 consists of the
following:

2015 2014
Rental income (nate 5) S 372,175 S 303,831
Loss on sale of foreclosed assets (48,677} (172,693)
Administrative fees - other funds - 42,033
Recoveries from loan guarantees 79,669 30,800
Miscellaneous income 540,914 232,584
Total $ 944,081 S 436,555
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OTHER NON-INTEREST EXPENSES

Other non-interest expenses for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 consist of the
following:

2015 2014

Electricity S 497906 § 467,807
Insurance 177,295 199,092
Repairs and maintenance 219,073 204,933
Telephone 39,417 40,350
Employees trainings and seminars 20,865 10,596
Office supplies 42,735 52,872
Reimbursement of expenses to emplayees 41,038 49,218
Dues and subscriptions 62,089 63,654
Investment operations 16,586 28,695
Vehicles 11,352 18,633
Postage L1247 15,723
Official meetings 13,895 5,308
Contribution to General Fund 417,629 -
Miscellaneous 516,784 436,156

Subtotal 2,098,791 1,603,037
Provision for losses on loan guarantees - 16,230
Provision for losses on foreclosed assets 1,400,000 900,000

Total b 3,498,791 5 2,519,287

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On February 1, 2010, the Governor of Puerto Rico issued Executive Order OE-2010-005,
which reassigned funds remaining from the local economic stimulus plan approved under
Law No, 9 of the Commonwealth in March 9, 2009. In accordance with this order, the
Bank received from GDB $41,250,000 to implement a program designed to promote the
economic capacity of small- and medium-size enterprises. Of this total, the Bank
recorded $30 million as a capital contribution aimed to generate new direct loans, $10
million as a reserve for possible losses from the Loan Guarantee Program created by the
abovementioned Law No. 9, and $1,250,000 as an accrual for expenses related to a
government wide effort to promote economic development of the small- and medium-
size enterprise sector.

As mentioned in Note 13 above, during 2011 $7 million from the reserve for possible
losses from the Loan Guarantee Program were reassigned for the disbursement of loans
under the “Desarrollo para el Pueblo” and “Vieques y Culebra”™ programs. Accordingly,
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$1,500 were disbursed under these programs during 2014, none during 2015, and
reclassified from the reserve account to capital contribution. In addition, during 2015 and
2014 the Bank disbursed 56,840 and $16,250, respectively, to pay loan guarantees to
commercial banks under the Loan Guarantee Program created by the abovementioned
Law No. 9. Finally, during 2015 the Bank received $483,000 from the local State Office
for Public Policy on Energy for the disbursement of loans under the “Green Loans"
program, which were also recorded as capital contribution.

MITIGANTS TO GOING CONCERN ISSUE AND LIQUIDITY LEVELS

As discussed in Note 1 of the basic financial statements, the Bank's deposits are mostly
derived from government agencies from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the
“Commonwealth”). The Commonwealth’s liquidity was significantly affected during fiscal
year 2015 and remains considerably limited, primarily, as a result of the Commonwealth’s
inability to access external sources of financial credit. Further deterioration in the
Commonwealth’s financial condition could have an adverse effect in the Bank's ability to
continue its operations.

Nevertheless, the Bank continues to diligently manage its cash position, fueled solely by
funds generated from its loan operations. Loan repayments of principal and interest are
prudently recycled into new loans and are enough to cover the costs of the Bank's
operation. The Bank does not receive nor require recurrent assignments of funds from
the Puerto Rico's Legislature or from other governmental entities to continue its
operation.

The Bank maintains a positive capital structure that has been accumulated during its 30
years of existence. This capital reflects the value of the operation and its ability to
generate business income while controlling operating expenses.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Bank evaluated subsequent events through April 7, 2016, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued. There were no material subsequent
events that would require further disclosure, other than the matter described below.

On April 6, 2016, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (“Commonwealth”} approved Act 21,
“Puerto Rico Emergency Moratorium and Financial Rehabilitation” (“Act Z1"). Act 21 has
four primary objectives:

Authorizes the Governor to declare a moratorium on debt service payments for a
temporary period for the Commonwealth, Government Development Bank (“GDB"), the
Bank, or any of the remaining government instrumentalities of Puerto Rico, stay creditor
remedies that may result from the moratorium.
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Amends GDB’s Enabling Act. Amendment consists of an updated receivership provisions,
bridge bank provisions and related procedures that are intended to provide an alternative
te GDB's liquidation and resolution under existing law.

Amends the Bank's enabling Act and replaces the outdated receivership provisions by
modifying the process for the appointment of a receiver, clarifying the receiver's powers,
and establishing priority of expenses and unsecured claims in a receivership.

Creates the Fiscal Agency and Financial Authority (the “Authority”) and it will be
structured as an independent public corporation and public instrumentality of the
Commonwealth with a board of directors composed of one appointed by the Governor.
The Authority is created for the purpose of acting as fiscal agent, financial advisor and
reporting agent of the Commonwealth and its public corporations, instrumentalities,
commissions, authorities, municipalities and political subdivisions and to assist such
entities in confronting the grave fiscal and economic emergency that the Commonwealth
is currently experiencing. The Authority will also oversee all matters related to the
restructuring or adjustment of any covered obligation, or otherwise coordinate and
implement liability management transactions for any covered obligation.

Act 21 provisions authorize the Governor to declare moratoriums that go into effect
fmmediately upon its enactment, and they generally expire on January 31, 2017. The
moratorium provisions classify various Puerto Rico entities including the Commonwealth
itself into the following two categories because Act 21 treats the creditors thereof
slightly differently: the GDB, the Bank, and government entities which include the
Commonwealth itself and the remaining government entities and public corporations with
significant indebtedness,
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